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Green Brook Township
PUBLIC SCHOOLS

wwwghtps.org

GBTPS

January 27, 2022

Honorabl € President and

Members ©f the Board of Education
Green Br ook Public Schools
County o f Somerset, New Jersey

D ear Board Members:

T he comprehensive annual financial report of the Green Brook Public Schools (District) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the District,
All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District’s financial
activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District’s
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic
financial statements and required supplementary information, as well as the auditor’s report
thereon. The financial section also includes Management’s Discussion and Analysis, which is
an overview of the District’s current financial status and future outlook. The statistical section
includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year
basis. The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance), and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Information related to this single audit, including
the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and findings and recommendations are included in the single audit section of this
report.

(1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Green Brook Public Schools is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by National Council on

District Office irene E. Feldkirchner Elemerary School Green Brook Middla Schoal
132 Jefferson Ave. 105 Andrew St 132 Jefterson Ave.
Green Brook, NI 08812 Green Brock, NI 08812 Green Brook, NJ 08R12

{732) 968.117 {732) 966-1052 1 (732} 968-105



Governmental Accounting (NCGA) Statement No. 3. The Green Brook Board of Education and
all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels preschool
through 8. These include regular education, gifted and talented, instructional support, English
language services. as well as special education programs. Preschool disabled programs also service
students ages 3-5. Students in grades 9-12 are sent to Watchung Hills Regional High School
District on a tuition basis. This high school district offers a comprehensive program including
regular vocational programs as well as special education programs for learning disabled students.
At the conclusion of the 2020-2021 school year, 382 students in grades 9-12 attended Watchung
Hills Regional High School. The following details the changes in the PreK-8 student enrollment
of the District over the last seven years:

Total School Enrollment

Annual

Student Percent

Fiscal Year Enrollment Change
2020-2021 723 (5.74%)
2019-2020 767 (2.04%)
2018-2019 783 (7.00%)
2017-2018 842 (5.82%)
2016-2017 897 (4.00%)
2015-2016 899 22%
2014-2015 894 (.56%)

Overall, the district experienced a decrease of 44 students for grades Pre-K to Grade 8

(2) ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

The Green Brook Township Board of Education recognizes the ever-changing environment of
financing education in the State of New Jersey. The School Funding Reform Act of 2008
established the formula for determining the level of State Aid and local funding needed to educate
all New Jersey public school children. This law also created a maximum tax levy increase, various
budget restrictions, and set the maximum district fund balance at the higher of 2% of budget
expenditures or $250,000. The New Jersey Department of Education releases the Education
Adequacy Report for adjustments to the costs, weights and aid amount in the State's school-funding
formula on a yearly basis. Over the past several years, this formula has changed based on the state's
budget, making it difficult to predict what state aid amount will be released to Green Brook
Township School on a consistent basis. The Green Brook Township Board of Education, along
with its excellent staff, believes it will continue to provide a comprehensive education for all of its
children. Exceptional instructional programs continue to be offered and reviewed on a regular basis
for improvements.



(3) MAJOR INITIATIVES:

The Green Brook Township School District continues to deliver high-quality programs and
maintain a fiscally responsible budget. The major initiatives for the 2020-2021 school year
included a continued focus on literacy across all content areas, especially focusing on supporting
teacher’s implementation of Reader’s and Writer’s Workshop, focusing on differentiating
instruction for students through conferring and small group work. Through a wide array of related
arts classes and enrichment opportunities, students have the ability to explore various areas of
learning as well as hone their learning to their needs. The 2020-2021 school year also brought forth
the creation of a Peer Leadership program which helped build independence, confidence, and
caring among a group of students who worked diligently to enter the program and grow its
potential.

All of the 2020-2021 initiatives will continue to be supported during the 2021-2022 school year.
In addition, the district will also work to support the new Next Generation Science Standards
through continued professional development and investment in the FOSS program for students in
kindergarten through fifth grade. Another main area of focus for the 2021-2021 school year will
be on the utilization of 1:1 technology to foster student learning, differentiation, and 21% century
skills. Ongoing training and support will be provided to staff through in-service, PLC work, and
turnkey opportunities to foster the skills necessary to leverage technology for instruction. Finally,
the Green Brook Township Public Schools vales the education of all students throughout the
district. All of the district’s goals combined with the ongoing support provided to parents, students,
and teachers make the Green Brook Township Public Schools a learning environment where all
students can succeed.

The Green Brook Township School District is extremely fortunate to have active and supportive
community organizations. The Parent-Teacher Organization (PTO) has made generous donations
to support all aspects of the school community. The Green Brook Education and Athletic
Foundation (GBEAF) raises funds to support a wide variety of programs and facilities in the
district. The efforts of the PTO and GBEAF, combined with the support of the Board of Education,
parents, and greater community, clearly demonstrates our community’s commitment to provide a
quality education for our students.

(4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS:

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic
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evaluation by the District’s management. As part of the District’s single audit described earlier,
tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion
related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District
has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

(3) BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The
objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund,
the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the
capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as
amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either cancelled or are included as re-
appropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are
reported as reservations of fund balance as of June 30, 2021,

(6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District’s accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District
is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in “Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements,” Note 1.

{7) CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in “Notes
to the Basic Financial Statements,” Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan
which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the
provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA™). GUDPA was enacted
in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking
institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in
public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

(8) RISK MANAGEMENT:

The District is a member of the Northeast Bergen County School Board Insurance Group (the
“Fund”). The Fund is a risk-sharing public entity pool established for the purpose of insuring
against workers’ compensation claims, general liability, property and vehicle insurance.

(9) OTHER INFORMATION:

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The Board’s finance committee selected the accounting firm of Suplee,
Clooney & Company. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit
also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act as amended and the related
Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 OMB. The auditor’s report on the
basic financial statements is included in the financial section of this report.

4



The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section
of this report.

(10) ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Green Brook Board of Education
for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school
District and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our
financial operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of our administrative, financial, accounting, and secretarial staffs.

Respectfully submitted,
Dr. James Bigsby Jason Weber
Superintendent of Schools Board Secretary/Business Administrator
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SurPLEE, CLOoONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-78%-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Green Brook School District
County of Somerset

Green Brook, New Jersey 08812

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities and each major fund Township of Green Brook Schoo! District, in the County of
Somerset, State of New Jersey (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contro! relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit requirements prescribed by the Division
of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-
08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.” Those standards
and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



SuPLEE, CLoONEY & COMPANY

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund of the District as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter
Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the basic financial statements, in 2021, the District adopted
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities (an Amendment of
GASB Statement No. 34). Our opinions are not modified with respect {o this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through C-3,
the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and the
schedules related to accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions (OPEB}
in Exhibit M-1 and M-2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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SuPrLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary
information schedules such as the introductory section, combining statements and individual fund
financial statements, the statistical section and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the State of New Jersey's
OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid,”
and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the
State of New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements, and the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 27, 2022 on our consideration of the Township of Green Brook School District's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dok Uiy ¢ L,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANZS

ot w 2.

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 27, 2022
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
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GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Green Brook Board of Education District’s financial
performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School
District's financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial
statements and notes to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary
Information specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement
No. 34. — Basic Financial Statements-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for the State
and Local Governments. Certain comparative information between the current fiscal year
and the prior fiscal year is presented in the MD&A. In fiscal year 2021, the District
implemented GASB Statement No. 84- Fiduciary Activities. Prior fiscal year 2020 information
was restated where information was available.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2021 are as follows:

¢ |n total, net position increased $1,944,369.67, which represents a 24.8 percent
increase from fiscal year 2020.

¢ General revenues accounted for $24,767,617.47 in revenue, or 75.0 percent of
all revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and
operating grants and contributions accounted for $8,258,497.93 in revenue or
25.0 percent of total revenues.

s The School District had $31,081,745.73 in expenses only $8,258,497.93 of these
expenses was offset by program specific charges for services, grants or
contributions. General revenues (primarily tax levy and unrestricted state aid) of
$24,767 617.47 were adequate to provide for these programs.

e Total Governmental Activities Net Position increased by $1,959,764.38. Cash
and cash equivalents increased by $20,497.48 receivables increased by
$166,654.12, liabilities decreased by $2,069,848.63 and capital assets
decreased by $720,827.00.

e Among governmental funds, the General Fund had $28,558,351.42 in revenues
and $27,082,576.09 in expenditures.

14



GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report {ACFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and explanatory notes. The
report is organized so that the reader can first understand Green Brook School District as a
financial whole. The financial operations of each individual fund are also described in detail
later in the report.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities: The purpose of the Statement of
Net Position and Statement of Activities is to combine financial data of all individual fund
operations to present information about the activities of the School District as a whole.
Activities are broken down into two broad categories: Governmental Activities and
Business-Type Activities. The most significant amount of activity for the Green Brook Board
of Education occurs in the category of Governmental Activities.

Reporting the School District as a Whole
State of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While the ACFR report contains detail of all individual funds used by the School District to
provide programs and activities, the most significant statements are the Statement of Net
Position and Activities. These statements include all assets, liabilities and activities using
the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of accounting reflects recognition of
revenues and expenditures when earned rather than received.

The Statements of Assets and Activities report the School District’'s net position and
changes in those assets. This change in net position is important because it tells the reader
whether the financial position of the School District has improved or diminished. The causes
of this change may be attributable to non-financial factors such as: The School District's
property tax base, changes in current State law, facility conditions, mandated educational
programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District's
operating activities are divided into two distinct types:

o Government Activities - All of the School District's programs and services are
reported here including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance
of plant facilities, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

» Business-Type Activities — This service is provided on a charge for goods or

services basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided.
The Food Service program is reported as a business activity.
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GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Reporting the School District’'s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the District's funds. The
District uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The District’s
governmental funds are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund,
and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows through those funds and the balances left at year-end. These funds are
reported using an accounting method referred to as the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which recognizes revenue and expenditures when they become both
measurable and available. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the School District's general government operations and the basic services it
provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine the availability of
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs.
The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the
financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities. These
statements closely resemble financia! statements of a private sector business entity.

The School District as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole.
The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the

net results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of
capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.
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GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District's net position for 2021 as compared to
2020,

Table 1
Net Position

{As Restated)

2021 2020
Assels
Current and Cther Assets $6,133,919.98 5,035,652.64
Capital Assels 18,591,832.00 19,318,802.00
Total Assets 24,725,751.98 24,354,554.64
Deferred Qutfiows:
Related to Pensions 860,129.00 1,283,679.00
Loss on Refunding of Long-term Debt 803,804.60 893,116.23
Total Deferred Qutflows 1,663,933.60 2,176,79523
Liabilities
Other Liabilities 4,536,185.63 5,581,462.98
Long-Term Liabilities 9,355,326.89 10,401,7698.38
Total Liabilities 13,891,512.52 15,983,232.36
Deferred Inflows:
Related to Pensions 2,446,956.00 2,413,056.00
Gain on Refunding of Long-Term Debt 253,927.13 282,141.25
Total Deferred Inflows 2.700,883.13 2,695,197.25
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 10,067,253.84 8,853,783.77
Restricted 3,635,374.39 3,831,683.91
Unrestricted(Deficit) (3.905,338.30) (4,832 557.42)
Total Net Position $9,797,289.93 $7,862,920.26

The District’s combined net position was $9,797,289.93 on June 30, 2021. The District’s
investment in capital assets is shown net of any related debt used to acquire those assets.
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GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION

GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Table 2
Changes in Net Position

Table 2 shows changes in net position for fiscal year 2021 as compared to 2020.

2021 2020
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $653,271.61 $644,018.39
Operating Grants and Contributions 7,605,226.32 5,862,158.08
Capital Grants and Contributions 378.32
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 24,518 595.00 24,059,585.00
Grants and Entitlements 48,341.00 61,417.00
Other 200,681.47 174,498.25
Total Revenues 33,026,115.40 30,802,055.04

Program Expenses

Instruction 21,418,454.18 20,241,317.44
Support Services:
Student and Instruction Related 3,874,805.66 3,367,028.30
Adminisirative and Business 2.172,131.73 2,094,954.46
Maintenance & Operations 1,724,754.24 1,577,625.89
Transportation 1,306,428.15 1,436,671.72
Business Type Activities 110,857.13 259,041.36
Cther 47431464 517,51543
Total Expenses 31,081,745.73 29,494,054.60
Increase/ (Decrease) in Net Position $1,944,369.67 $1,308,000.44

Governmental Activities

Property taxes made up 74.5 percent of revenues for governmental activities for the Green
Brook School District for fiscal year 2021. Property tax revenues increased by $459,010.00,
which is a 1.9 percent increase over the prior year. The District's total revenues were
$32,930,652.98 for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Instruction comprises 69.2 percent of district expenses. Support Services costs make up
29.3 percent of district expenses and other services make up 1.5 percent of district
expenses.

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services
and grants offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net
cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue
and unrestricted State entitiements.

Table 3
Cost of Services
Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of
Serviceg 2021 Services 2020 Services 2021 Services 2020
Instruction $21,418,454.18 20,241,317.44 $15,400,273.42 $15,452,408.48
Support Services:
Students and Instruction Related 3,874,805.66 3,367,028.30 2,672,603.45 2,557,231.42
General Administration, School
& Central Administration 2,172,131.73 2,094,954 46 1,704,217.06 1,783,358.14
Maintenance of Facilities 1,724,754 .24 1,677,5625.89 1,5682,472.40 1,499,444.77
Student Transportation 1,306,428.15 1,436,671.72 984,762.26 1,140,705.01
Other 474,314.64 517,515.43 474,314.64 517,51543
Business-Type Activities 110,857.13 258,041.36 15,604.57 36,836.56
Total Net Cost of Services $31,081,745.73 $29,494,054.60 $22,823.247.80 $22,987,499.81

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the
interaction between teacher and student.

Pupils and instructional staff include the activities invoived with assisting staff with the
content and process of teaching students.

General administration, school administration and central services include expenses
associated with administrative and financial supervision of the district.

Operation and maintenance of facilities activities involve keeping the school grounds,

buildings and equipment in an effective condition and providing for the safety and security
for all members of the school community while on school property.

19



GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Curriculum and staff development includes expenses related to planning, research,
development and evaluation of support services.

Pupil transportation includes activities associated with the conveyance of both regular
education and special education students to and from school, school activities and athletic
events, as provided by state law.

Exiracurricular activities include expenses related to student activities provided by the
school district which are designed to provide opportunities for students to participate in
school events, public events, or a combination of these for the purposes of motivation,
enjoyment and skill improvement.

Interest and fiscal charges involve the transactions associated with the payment of interest
and other related charges to debt of the school district.

The School District relies mainly upon tax revenues to function. The community, as a whole,
is the primary support for the Green Brook School District

Business-Type Activities

Revenue for the District's business-type activities was comprised of the Food Service
Program. Overall business type expenses exceeded revenues by $15,394.71

The School District’'s Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and
debt service fund presented in the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Total revenues amounted to $30,408,128.98 and
expenditures and financing uses were $28,932,154.58,

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section
of this report, the School District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial
management. The following schedule present a summary of general fund, special revenue
fund, and debt service fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and the
amount and percentage of increase and decrease in relation to prior year revenues.

Percent
increase{Decrease) Increase
Revenues Amount Percent of Total from FY 2020 (Decrease)
Local Sources $25,233,818.68 82.98% $526,064.40 1.85%
State Sources 4.881,070.79 16.05% 791,386.26 3.12%
Federal Sources 293,239.51 0.96% 27,729.00 1.88%
Total $30,408,128.98 100.00% $1,345,179.66 2.44%
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GREEN BROOK BOARD OF EDUCATION
GREEN BROOK, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Local revenues increased mainly due to a property tax increase needed to fund the
additional expenditures associated with the instructional program and increased operating
costs. Federal and State sources increased due to more grant funding.

The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, and
debt service fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, and the percentage
of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

Percent
Percent of Increase/(Decrease) Increase/

Expenditures Amount Total from FY 2020 (Decrease)
Current:

Instruction $6,337,424.53 21.90% ($13,365.24) -0.21%

Support Services 20,958,091.05 72.44% 841,290.66 3.86%

Capital Outlay 109,364.00 0.38% (13,079.91) -13.58%

Debt Service 1,527,275.00 5.28% 8,200.00 0.01

Total $28,932,154.58 100.00% $823,045.51 1.53%

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District’'s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and
encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.

« Over the course of the year, the Board of Education, when appropriate, approved budget
transfers to keep accounts in balance. Transfers to the budget were made to accurately
reflect expenditures according to state guidelines and prevent over-expenditures in
specific line-item accounts.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED

Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2021, the School District had $18,591,832.00 invested in
building, building improvements, furniture, equipment, and vehicles. Table 4 shows fiscal
year 2021 balances compared to fiscal year 2020.

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

2021 2020

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net:

Land $967,773.00 $967,773.00

Building and Building Improvements 17,295,745.00 18,050,047.00

Machinery and Equipment 264,142.00 230,667.00
Total Governmentat Activities Capital Assets, Net 18,527,660.00 19,248,487.00
Business Type Activities Capital Assets, Net:

Machinery and Equipment 64,172.00 70,415.00
Total Business Type Aclivities Capital Assets, Net: 64,172.00 70,415.00
Total Capifal Assets, Net $18,591,832.00 $19,318,902.00

Overall capital assets decreased $727,070.00 from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021. The
decrease in capital assets is due primarily to depreciation.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2021, the School District had $13,381,662.89 of outstanding long-term liabilities.
Of this amount, $280,871.26 is for compensated absences, $4,026,336.00 is pension
related, $9,060,000 is for serial bonds for schoo! construction, and $14,455.63 is for capital
leases. For more detailed information on the District’s long-term liabilities, please refer to the
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. Table 5 shows bonded debt at June 30, 2021 as
compared to June 30, 2020.
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Table 5
Bonded Debt

FY 2021 FY 2020
Series
2011 b - 5 1,095,000.00
2012 9,060,000.00 9,060,000.00

Total $ 9,060,000.00 § 10,155,000.00

For the Future

The District’'s administration maintains a strategic, goal-driven approach to budget planning
and priorities. Areas of focus are:

Student Achievement

Social and Emotiona! Wellness
Programs and Opportunities
Operational Efficiency

* @ o ¢

While many factors influence the District's future plans, the availability of State funding,
special education needs, capital improvements, enroliment trends, the ongoing pandemic,
and the overall state of the economy will have the most impact on educational and fiscal
decisions.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management Office

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the School District’s finances and to show the School District's
accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need
additional information, please contact Jason Weber, Business Administrator/Board
Secretary, Green Brook Board of Education, Green Brook, NJ 08812.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2021
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position display information about the District. These statemenis
include the financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the
double counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmentat and business-type activities of the District.
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TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL BISTRICT

ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
inventory
Restricted assels:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:

Non Depreciable

Depreciable - Net

Total Assets

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES:
Related to pension

L.oss on refunding of long-term debt

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Payroli Deductions and Withholdings Payable
Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable
Noncurrent liabilities:

Net pension fability

Due within one year

Due beyond one year

Totai Habilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES:;
Related to pension

Gain on refunding of long-term debt

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assels
Restricted for:

Special revenue

Other purposes
Unrestricted {deficit)

Total net position

The accompanying Notes o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

EXHIBIT "A-1"

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIE IOTAL

$1,670,606.74 $21.30 $1,670,628.04
794,595.97 30,480.62 825,076.59
2,840.96 2,840.96

3,635,374.39 3,635,374.39
967,773.00 967,773.00
17,559,887.00 64,172.00 17,624,059.00
24,628,237.10 97.514.88 24,725,751.98
860,129.00 860,129.00
803,804.60 803,804.60
1,663,933.60 1.663,933.60
391,076.92 533.66 391,610.58
38,620.90 14,869.62 53,490.52
48,569.38 48,559.38
8,589.45 6,589.45
9.599.70 9,699.70
4,026,336.00 4,026,336.00
1,144,455 63 1,144,455 .63
8.210,871.26 8,210,871.26
13,876,109.24 15,403.28 13,861,512.52
2,446,956.00 2,446,956.00
253.927.13 253,927.13
2,700,883.13 2,700,883.13
10,003,081.84 64,172.00 10,067,253.84
23,080.54 23,080.54
3,612,203.85 3,612,293.85
(3,923,277.90) 17,938.60 {3,905,338.30)
$9,715,178.33 $82,111.60 $9,797,280.93
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.
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EXHIBIT "B-1"

SH #
TOWNS EENB HOOL Di
BALANC T
WVERNM NDS
Ju 021
SPECIAL TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL
EUND EUND EUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,603,687.28 § $ 1,693,687.28
Accounis receivable:
Intergovernmental-Federal 91,394.00 91,394.00
Intergovernmental-State 614,601.00 $14,691.00
intergovernmental-Other 64,135.56 64,135.56
Accounts Receivable-Other 24,375.41 24,375.41
interfunds 29,196.56 20,196.66
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,612,293.85 3.612,203.85
Total assets $ 6,038,37966 % 91,394.00 § 6,129,773.66
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 99,052.92 10,200.00 109,252.92
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings Payable 6,569.45 6,589.45
Unemployment Compensation Claims Payable 9,599.70 9,589.70
Interfund payable 29.196,56 29,196.56
Unearned revenue 9,704.00 28,916.90 38,620.50
Total Habilifies 124,946.07 68 313.46 193,250.53
Fund balances:
Restricted for:
Capital reserve account 3,210,177.66 3.210,177.66
Maintenance reserve account 378,108.64 378,108.64
Tuition reserve account 400,000.00 400,000.00
Unemployment compensation 24,007.55 24,007.55
Student activilies 23,080.54 23,080.54
Excess surplus 300,000.00 300,000.00
Excess surplus - Designated for
subsequent years expenditures 3150,000.00 350,000.00
Assigned:
Year-end encumbrances 43,644.97 43,644.97
Unassigned 1,207 ,494.77 1,207,494.77
Total fund balances 5,913,433.59 23,080.54 5,935,514.13
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 6,038,379.66 $ 91,394.00 § 6,120,773.66

The accompanying Notes 1o the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #2
TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward) $ 5,936,514.13
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position {(A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of assets $ 37,931,785.00
Accumulated depreciation {19.404,125.00)
18,527,660.00
Cost associated with the issuance of Bonds are
expensed in the Governmental Funds in the
year the bonds are issued, but are capitalized
on the Statement of Net position:
Deferred inflow on refunding {253,927.13)
Deferred outflow on refunding 803,804.60
549,877.47

Long term liabilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as Habilities in the funds.

Serial bonds payable (2.060,000.00)
Net pension liability (4,026,336.00)
Capital leases payable {14,455.63)
Compensated absences payable (280,871.26)

(13,381,662.89)

Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Outflows
Pension related 860,129.00

Deferred Infiows:
Pension related (2,446 ,956.00)

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Accounts payable - pension related (281,824.00})
Accrued interest payable (48,559.38)
Net Position of Governmentai Activities 3 9,715,178.33

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

30



EXHIBIT "B-2"

10 HIP OF GREEN B HOOL DISTRI
TATEME! F REVENUES, EXP 11 NB CHA IN FUND BALAN
WERN TAL F
R THE F| i YEA DED J 30, 202
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
REVENUES:
Lecal sources:
Local tax levy $ 2299132000 § ¥ 1,527,275.00 8 24,518,685.00
‘Tuition 481,095.92 481,005.92
Transpotation 4,393.10 4.393,10
Interest eamned on capital reserve funds 14,166.9¢ 14,166.11
interest earned on malintenance reserve funds 2,358.64 2,358.64
Miscellaneous 183,946.86 28,263.05 213,209.91
Tolal - local sources 23,677,260.83 29,263.05 1,627,275.00 25,233,818.68
Stale sources 4,881,070.79 4,881,070.79
Federal sources 293,239,514 293,238.51
“Totat revenues 28,558,351.42 322,502.56 1,527,275.00 30,408,128.88
EXPENDITURES:
Current expense:
Regular instruction 4,570,240.97 17,034.18 4,587,275.15
Special instruction 1,477,510.20 7.461.00 1,484,871.20
Other Instruction 22847818 35,700.00 265,178.18
Suppont services:
Tuition 9,125,779.60 166,525.00 9,292,304.60
Student & instruction rejated services 2038,9768.35 95,583,31 2,134,559.66
General administrative services 355,550.59 355,650.59
School adminisirative services 42562140 425,621.40
Central services 322,958.37 322,958.37
Administrative information technology 123,165.11 123,165.11
Plant operations and maintenance 1,178,130,39 1,178,130.39
Student transporiation 1,273,426.56 1,273,426.56
Unallocated benefits 5,838,160.37 5,838,160.37
Bebt Service:
Principal 1,085,000.00 1,095,000.00
interest 432,275,00 432,275.00
Capitat outtay 108,364.00 109,364.00
TFransfer 1o Charier School 14,214.00 14,214,00
Tolal expendifures 27,082,576.09 322,303.49 1,527,275.00 28,932,154.58
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over (under} expenditures 1.475,775.33 199.07 1,475,974.40
Other financing sources (uses):
Operaling fransfers infout 38,458.18 {38,458.18)
Totai other financing sources 38,458.18 (38,458.18)
Net change in fund balances 1.614,233.51 199.07 {38,458.18) 1.475,974.40
Fund batances, July 1, [ 4,375,370.14 § 3845818 $ $ 4,413,828.32
Prior Period Adjustments 23,829.94 22,881.47 46,711.41
Fund Balance, Jufy 1, Restated 4,399,200.08 22,881.47 38,458.18 4,460,535.73
Fund batances, June 30, $ 591343359 § 23,080.54 $ $ 5,936,514.13

The accompanying Notes to the Financlal Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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EXH|BIT "B-3"

TOWNSHIP OF N BRO HOOL DISTRICT
RECONC 10N OF THE STAT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT
AND CH ES IN F BALA F G MENTAL FUNDS

TO THE TEMENT QF ACTIVI
FOR THE FISCAL R END NE 30 1

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds {from B-2) $ 1,475,874.40

Amounts reported for governmentat activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capilat outtays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures, However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period

Depreciation expense $ {773,492.00)
Capilal outlays 108,364.00
Less: Capital outlays not capitalized {56,699.00)
{720,827.00)
Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in governmental funds. Thay are
not revenue in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term labilities
in the statement of net position.

Deferred outfow of resources for refunding bond premium amortization (89,311.63)
Defesred inflow of resources for refunding bond gain amortization 28,214.12
{61,097.51)

Repayment of long-term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term Habiities in the statement of net position and is not reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of capital lease principal 13,521.35
Payment of ERIP loan 36,931.83
Payment of bond principal 1,095,000.00
1,145,452.88
In the statement of changes in net position, only the gain on the disposal of capital assets is reporied, whereas in
the governmental funds, the proceeds from a sale increase financial resources, thus, the change in
net position will differ from the change in fund balance by the cost of the asset removed.

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless of when due.
in governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued interest is an increase in the
reconciliation,

Decrease in accrued interest payable 20,075.00

District pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made,
However, they are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reporied net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in defesred cutflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension contributions 270,089.00
Less: Pension expense {70,902.00)
199,197.00
In the statement of activities, cerlain expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts eamed during the year. In governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used {paid). When the earned
amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the
paid amount exceeds the eamed amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation {+).
{Increase)/Decrease in compensated absences payable (99,010.49)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1,959,764,38

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWNSHIP QF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FPROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and ¢ash equivalents
Accounts receivable;
Federal
State
Other
Inventories
Totai current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Fumiture, machinery and eguipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:

Net Investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

EXHIBIT "B-4"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

21.30

28,777.59
797.13
905.90

2,840.96

33,342.88

267,440.00
(203,268.00)

64,172.00

97,514.88

533.66
14,869.62

15,403.28

15,403.28

64,172.00
17,939.60

§2,111.60

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP O

REEN BROOK SCHOOL
STATEMENT QOF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES N NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
EOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:

Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Miscellaneous

OPERATING EXPENSES;
Cost of sales-reimbursable
Cost of sales-non reimbursable
Sataries
Employee benefits
Other purchased property services - repairs
Other purchased services
Supplies and materials
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating (loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES:
State Sources
State school lunch program
Federal Sources
National school lunch program
Emergency Operational Cost Program-Schools
P-EBT Administrative Cost
National food distribufion commodities

Interest and investment revenue

Total non-operating revenues

Change in net position
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

EXHIBIT "B-5"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
FUNDS

SCHOOL NUTRITION

662.13
595.46

1,257.59

15,516.00
206.65
32,981.89
9,438.61
3,377.25
18,626.42
23,467.31
6,243.00

110,867.13

(109,599.54)

3,327.28

62,832.82
8,904.20
614.00
18,216.69
200.86

94,204.83

{15,394.71)

97,506.31

82,111.60

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE FiSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities;
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees and employee benefits
Payments {o suppliers

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State Sources
Federal Sources

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities:

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by {used for) investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1,

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30,

Reconciliation of operating income {foss) to net cash

provided {used) by operating activities
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconciling operating income (loss) io
net cash provided by {used for) operating activities:
Depreciation and net amortization
Nationai food distribution commodities

Change in assets and liabilities:

Increase (decrease) in accounts payabie
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase {decrease) in unearned revenue
{(Increase) decrease in inventories

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

EXHIBIT "B-6"

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES
ENTERPRISE
EUNDS

$ (877.42)
{2,570.94)
(82,772.35)

(86,220.71)

3,266.08
43,690.83

46,956.91

209.86

209.86

(39,053.94)

39,075.24

$ 21.30

$ (109,599.54)

6,243.00
18,216.69

(912.77)
209.41

(6,562.11)
6,204.61

23,378.83

$ (86,220.71)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Township of Green Brook School District have
been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant
of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The Township of Green Brook School District is a Type Il District located in
Somerset County, New Jersey. The District is an instrumentality of the State of
New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The District is
governed by a nine-member board elected to three-year terms and is responsible
for the fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board
and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity are
set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
entitted “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units”
(GASB 39) as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and that meet all of the
following criteria should be discreetly presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate
organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of
the primary government.

2. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or
has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic
resources of the organization.

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual
organization that the specific primary government, or its component
units, is entitied to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are
significant to that primary government.

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include one
elementary school and one middle school. There were no additional entities
required to be included in the reporting entity under the criteria as described above,
in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other
reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a Statement of Net Positions and a Statement of Activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-Wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish
generally between the governmental and business-type activity of the District.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial condition of the governmental
and business-type activity of the District at fiscal year-end. The Statement of
Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues
for the business-type activity of the District and for each function of the District’s
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular
function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirement of a particular
program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented as generally revenues. The comparison of direct expenses
with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function
or business segment is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the
District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The fund
financial statements provide information about the District's funds. Separate
statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary - are presented.
The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE believes that
the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models.

38



NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Fund Types

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It
is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for vehicles and movable
instructional or non-instructional equipment which are classified in the Capital
Outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes
budgeted capital outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as
they pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be
used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the
resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.
Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State
of New Jersey Aid, district taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are
those that result in the acquisition of or additions to fixed assets for land, existing
buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or
remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources
can be transferred from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund — The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and
report the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to
expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects.
Thus, the Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Governments {other than major capital projects,
debt service or the enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally
restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and
report financial resources that are resfricted, committed or assigned to expenditure
for capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and
other capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically
authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the
annual election or at a special election, funds appropriated from the General Fund,
and from aid provided by the State to offset the cost of approved capital projects.

Debt Service Fund — Debt service funds are used to account for and report

financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditure for
principal and interest.

39



NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Fund

Enterprise Fund - The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining o the District’s Food Service operations. The food service fund is
utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e.
expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services
to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through
user charges.

Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported on the financial statements.

District-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: The District-wide
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses
versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to accrual as
under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit fo its school
district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to
the end of the school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as
revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule
and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable®”. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Governmental Fund Financial
Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.
"Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are
recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general jong-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office. In accordance with P.L.. 2011, c. 202, which became effective
January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the School Board election to the
date of the November general election thereby eliminating the vote on the annual
base budget unless required by the mandated State budget CAP. The legal level
of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line
item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as
established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
B6A:23-2.2()1. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at
the line item level. All budget amendments and transfer must be approved by
School Board resolution. Budget amendments during the year ended June 30,
2021 totaled net $197,439.00, representing prior unbudgeted state aids and other
allowable approved modifications. All budget amounts presented in the
accompanying supplementary information reflect the original budget and the
amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authorized revisions of the
annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The capital
proiects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to current
year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a
management control device during the year. For governmental funds there are no
substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally
accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated
recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the
special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed
as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types.
Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained t{o allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of
the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other
than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at fiscal
year-end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed coniracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received
advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at fiscal year-
end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds
Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are

recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are executed
and are part of the district's available expendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year end balances
are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost on
a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at stated
value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure in the year of purchase.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings and
improvements, and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-wide
financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets with
an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of one
year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their acquisition values on the date received. The cost
of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated
in the district-wide statements using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
School Buildings 50

Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30

Vehicles 8

Office & Computer Equipment 5-10
Instructional Equipment 10

Ground Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused sick days) as
directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB
16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for compensated
absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a specific
event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of sick days in accordance with
the District's employment contract and personnel policy. Per the most recent
GBEA contract, upon retirement, employees with at least 75 accumulated sick
days are eligible to be compensated for up to 175 days at a rate of $30 per day for
support staff and $50 per day for instructional staff. Terms vary for administration
in accordance with their individual contracts.

The liability for compensated absences was accrued using the termination
payment method, whereby the liability is calculated based on the amount of sick
days that are expected to become eligible for payment upon retirement. The
District estimates its accrued compensated absences liability based on the
accumulated sick days at the balance sheet date by those employees who are
currently eligible to receive retirement payments,
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook Schocl District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences (Continued)

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds,
in the Fund Financial Statements, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconciling item
between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance that
is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future use.
Designations of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate tentative
plans for financial utilization in a future period. The unassigned fund balances
represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unassigned net position represents the remains of the District's equity in the
cumulative earnings of the food service fund.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the special revenue and capital projects funds represents
funds which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding accounts
receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at year end
which is an allowable under generally accepted accounting principles.

Accrued Liabilities and L.ong-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
District-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year.
Bonds are recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements when due.

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital asseis consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported
as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District’s
policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Reserves

Under GASB 54, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the
following classifications of fund balance:

Non-Spendable — includes amounts that cannot be spend because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Maintenance Reserve,
Tuition Reserve, Student Activities, Unemployment and Excess Surplus as
Restricted Fund Balance.

Committed ~ includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision-making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved by
the Board of Education

Assigned — includes amount that the District intends to use for a specific purpose,
but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the
District’'s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business Administrator. The
District reports Year End Encumbrances and amounts Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures as Assigned Fund Balance.

Unassigned — is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general
fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive unassigned
fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for
specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund
balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the
current fiscal year. For the District, available means within sixty days of the fiscal
year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, income taxes, grants,
entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property
taxes is recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from
grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing
requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the
District must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and
expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided to the District on a
reimbursement basis. On the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. Under the
modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered both
measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Proprietary Funds Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the School District enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales of food service. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expense, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer’s share of social security,
workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated based on
salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically
identified by function in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that
could not be attributed to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and
is reported separately in the Statement of Activities.
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NOTE 1:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Extraordinary and Special items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of transactions occurred during the fiscal year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

in the District-Wide Financial Statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System (“PERS") and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF") and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by
PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, the year-end Net pension liability
is not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1%t of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District’s behalf by
the State of New Jersey. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements reflects
both a revenue and expenses for this pension contribution.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred oufflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expensel/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
two items that qualify for reporting in this category, deferred amounts from
refunding debt and deferred amounts related to pensions.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has two items that qualify for
reporting in this category, deferred amounts from refunding debt and deferred
amounts related to pensions.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

Beginning with the year ended June 30, 2021, the District has implemented GASB
Statement 84, Fiduciary Activities. The objective of this new Statement is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting
and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. This
Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom
a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary
activities.

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic
financial statements. Governments with activities meeting the criteria should
present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-
type activity that normally expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less.
As a result of the implementation of this Statement, the New Jersey Department
of Education has made the following determinations as to the reporting of certain
fund which, in prior years, have been reported as Fiduciary Activities:

Prior to
implementation of After Implementation of
Activity GASB 84 GASB 84
Student Activity Funds Fiduciary Fund Special Revenue Fund
Scholarship Funds Fiduciary Fund Special Revenue Fund
Payroll Agency Funds Fiduciary Fund General Fund
State Unemployment Compensation Fund Fiduciary Fund General Fund
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronocuncements (Continued)

See Note 21 for information of the restatement of balance resulting in the
implementation of this new standard.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, certificates of
deposits, deposits in the New Jersey Cash Management Fund, deposits in the
governmental money market fund, deposits in the New Jersey Asset and Rebate
Management Program and short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less as cash and cash equivalents. Investments are stated at cost,
which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories which
are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank that accepts public
funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined as a state bank, a
national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State of New Jersey, the
deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The
statutes also require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public
funds that exceed certain insurance limits. All collateral must be deposited with
the Federal Reserve Bank or a Banking Institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System, and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.00. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.

The Township of Green Brook School District had the following cash and cash
eguivalents at June 30, 2021:

Bank Reconciling ltems Reconciled
Fund Type: Balance Additions Reductions Balance
Governmental $5,677,651.82 $9,897.90 $381,468.69 $5,305,981.13
Proprietary 5,613.61 5,692.31 21.30
$5,683,165.53 $9,897.90 $387,061.00 $5,306,002.43
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Deposits {Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere
to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2021, based upon the coverage
provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed to
custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank, $250,000.00 was covered
by Federal Depository Insurance and $5,433,165.53 was covered under the
provisions of NJGUDPA,

Investments

The purchase of investments by the Board is strictly limited by the express
authority of the N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37 Education, Administration of School Districts.
Permitted investments include any of the following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company Act
of 1940," 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government
securities that meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17
C.F.R. § 270.2a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized by
such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be made
pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. These funds are
also required to be rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued
in accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date
not greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor;

4. Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the school
district is focated.

5. Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397 days

from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments (Continued)

6. Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security pursuant
to 17 C.F.R. § 270a-7 and repurchase agreements that are collateralized
by such U.S. Government securities in which direct investment may be
made pursuant {o paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37. This type
of investment is also required to be rated in the highest category by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

7. Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant {o section 1 of P.L. 1977, ¢.281 (C. 52:18A-90.4); or

8. Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if;

a.

the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection;

the custody of collateral is fransferred to a third party;

the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository
as defined in section 1 of P.L. 1970, ¢.236 (C. 17:19-41); and

a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

At June 30, 2021, the District had no outstanding investments.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 and its
existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed to credit risks,
custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and interest rate risks for its
investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency risks for its deposits and
investments.
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $967.773.00 $967,773.00
Total Capital Assets not
being depreciated 967,773.00 967,773.00
Buildings and Building Improvements 32,465,127.00 32,465,127.00
Machinery and Equipment 4,446,220.00 52.665.00 4,408,885.00
Totals at historicat cost 36,911,347.00 52,665.00 36,964,012.00
Gross Assets (Meme only} 37,933,172.00 52,665.00 37,831,785.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Building Improvements (14,415,080.00) {754,302.00) {15,169,382.00)
Machinery and Equipment {4,215,553.000 (18,190.00) {4,234,743.00)
Total Bepreciation {18,630,633.00) {773,492.00) (19,404,125.00)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net of depreciation 17 .553,123.00 {720,827.00) 17,669,887.00
Total Governmental Fund Activities $18,520,896.00 {$720,827.00) $18,527,660.00
Business type Aclivities:
Machinery and Equipment $267,440.00 $267,440.00
Totals at historical cost 267,440.00 267,440.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Machinery and Equipment (197,025.00) (6,243.00) (203,268.00}
Total Depreciation (197,025.00) {6,243.00) {203,268.00)
Total Proprietary Fund Activities $70,415.00 {$6,243.00) $64,172.00
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CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functional

expense areas of the District as follows:

Instruction:
Regular $302,681.00
Special education instruction 105,942.00
Other Instruction 61,331.00
Support services:
Student and instruction related services 128,803.00
General administrative services 25,271.00
School administrative services 29,661.00
Central services 21,626.00
Administrative technology 10,056.00
Piant operations and maintenance 85,848.00
Pupil transportation 2,273.00

$773,492.00

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which
they were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make paymenis.

At June 30, 2021, the District had no bonds or notes authorized but not issued.

The following is a summary of changes in liabilities that effect other long-term
obligations for the year ended June 30, 2021:
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Baiance, Balance, Due Within

June 30. 2020 Additions Reductions June 30, 2021 One Year
Bonds Payable $10,155,000.00 ($1,095,000.00) $9.060,000.00 $1,130,000.00
Compensated Absence 181,860.77 $99,010.49 280,871.28
ERIP Loan 36,931.63 (36,931.63)
Net Pension Liability 4.694,708.00 (668,372.00) 4,026,336.00
Capital Leases Payable 27,976.98 (13,521.35) 14,455.63 14,455.63
Total $15,006,477.38 $99.010.49 ~ {$1,813,824.98) $13,381,662.80 $1.144,455.63

Debt Capacity

Under New Jersey Statutes, the District may incur debt in an amount not to exceed
3% of the averaged equalized valuation basis of real property. For the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021, the District borrowing capacity under N.J.S.A. 18A:24-19
would be as follows:

Equalized
Valuation of
Year Real Property
2020 $1,423,676,465
2018 1,411,085,014
2018 1,414,807,702

$4,249,579,181

Average equalized valuation $1,416,526,394
School borrowing margin

(3% of $1,416,526,394) $42,495,792
Net school debt as of June 30, 2021 9,060,000
School borrowing power available $33,435,792
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June 30, 2021

Debt Service Requirements

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of June 30,
2021, including interest payments, are as follows:

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fiscal Year
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 1,130,000.00 388,475.00 $1,518,475.00
2023 1,175,000.00 343,275.00 1,518,275.00
2024 1,230,000.00 295,400.00 1,525,400.00
2025 1,290,000.00 233,900.00 1,523,900.00
2026 1,355,000.00 168,400.00 1,524,400.00

2027-2028 2,880,000.00 174,000.00 3,054,000.00
Totals $9,060,000.00 $1,604,450.00 $10,664,450.00

General obligation school and refunding bonds payable with their outstanding
balances are comprised of the following individual issues:

Amount
Qutstanding

Issue June 30, 2021

$9,175,000.00 in 2012 Refunding Bonds due in remaining annual
installments of between $1,130,000.00 and $1,470,000.00 ending

May, 2028 with interest ranging from 3.500% to 5.000% $ 9,060,000.00

$ 9,060,000.00
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Capital Leases Payable

The District has entered into various capital leases. The following is a schedule of
the future minimum lease payments under capital leases, and the present value of
the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2021:

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, Amount
2022 $15,472.76
Total Minimum Lease Payments 165,472.76
Less: Amount Representing Interest {1,017.13)
Present Value of Lease Payments $14,455.63

PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either
the Public Employees’ Retirement System or the Teachers' Pension and Annuity
Fund which have been established by state statute and are administered by the
New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of
New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed
by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a
publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required suppiementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System
and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by
writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey,
08625.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) - The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement System
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state-administered retirement system or other
state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) - The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage to elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.

Significant Legislation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the operations
and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

Pension Plan Design Changes

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78, new members of TPAF and PERS, hired
on or after June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have
attained the age of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction
of 1/4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65. New members will
be eligible for a service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calcuiating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30-year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for PFRS),
the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the remaining period
reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-ended 20 year
period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Vesting and Benefit Provisions The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS are
set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits
vest after ten years of service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that
vest after 25 years of service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years
of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitied to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and
N.J.S. A 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing
employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State
of New Jersey legislation.

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates; from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years
beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law's effective date
for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public-school districts.

Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual
Year Ended Pension Cost Percentage of Net Pension
June 30 APC APC Contributed Obligation
2021 $270,099.00 100% $270,099.00
2020 253,438.00 100% 253,438.00
2019 284,893.00 100% 284,993.00

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019, the State of New
Jersey contributed $1,907,174.00, $1,399,264.00 and $1,265,904.00,
respectively, excluding post-retirement medical and long-term disability insurance,
fo the TPAF pension system on behalf of the District.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Contribution Requirements

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 during the years ended June 30,
2021, 2020 and 2019, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District
$497,691.79, $495,944.53 and $508,805.93 for the employer's share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $4,026,336.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension lability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019
which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The District's proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2020, the District's
proportion was 0.0246802608 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0013646979
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of
$70,900.00 in the government-wide financial statements. This pension expense
was based on the pension plans June 30, 2020 measurement date.

At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to PERS from the foliowing sources:

Deferred Deferred
Qutflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $73,313 $14,239
Changes of assumptions 130,619 1,685,865

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 137,623

Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 236,750 746,852

District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 281,824

$860,129 $2,446,956

59



NOTE 6:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes fo the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) {(Continued}

The $281,824.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the measurement date
(i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2021, the plan measurement date is June
30, 2020) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2022,

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2021 ($607,252)
2022 (562,638)
2023 (365,251)
2024 (208,466)
2025 (125,044)

($1,868,651)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which rolled forward to June 30, 2020.
These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Inflation 2.75% 2.25%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 2.00-6.00% 2.00-6.00%
Thereafter 3.00-7.00% 3.00-7.00%
Based on Based on
Years of Service Age
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued}
Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median
Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-
2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-
Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and
117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-
2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

in accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at both June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019) is determined by
the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and infiation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
jong-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in
PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following
table:
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NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {Contihued)

Long-Term Rate of Return {(Continued)

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Aliocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Estate Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% and 6.28%
as of June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 respectively. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be based on 78% of the actuarially determined
contributions for the State employer and 100% of actuarially determined
contributions for the local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan's
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
CONTINUED

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well
as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than
the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
6.00% 7.00% 8.00%
District’s proportionate
share
of the net pension liability $5,108,341 $4,026,336 $3,166,751

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey

08625-0295 http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be
funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these local
participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation as defined
by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing
entity. Since the local parficipating employers do not contribute directly to the plan
(except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or
deferred oulflows or inflows to report in the financial statements of the local
participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the
local participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the District
recognized at June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State's proportionate share
associated with the District $41,268,420
$41,268,420

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. The net
pension liability associated with the District was based on a projection of the District's
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating school districts and the State, actuarially determined.
At June 30, 2020, the proportion of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the
District was .0626714874% which was a decrease of .0003737853 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense
and revenue of $2,566,246.00 in the government-wide financial statements for
contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and revenue was based on
the pension plans June 30, 2020 measurement date.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
CONTINUED

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2020. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to
all periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019
Inflation rate:
Price 2.75% 2.75%
Wage - 3.25% 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45% 1.55%-4.55%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65% 2.00%-5.65%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of
2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the
Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a
114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality
table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and
with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.
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NOTE 6: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
{CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) {Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% and 7.00% at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 respectively)
is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of

trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included
in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the

following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 13.50% 8.57%
Emerging Market Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Estate Assels 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.59%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.87%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3.40%
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB_ 68
CONTINUED

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.40% and 5.60%
as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. This single blended discount rate was
based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of
7.00% for both June, 30 2020 and 2019, and a municipal bond rate of 2.21%
and 3.50% as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer
Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member coniribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the
most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 50% of the actuarially determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan
members through 2062. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2062, and the
municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in
determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers Public
and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New Jersey
Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295

http:/iwww state.nj.usftreasury/pensions.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS — GASB 75

Plan Description and Benefits Provided

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB plan, with that is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Heaith
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No.
75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According to
N.J.S.A. 52:14-17.32f, the State provides employer-paid coverage to employees
who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years or more of
service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following
plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement System (PFRS),
or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L, 2011, future
retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years
of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the
cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or more
years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the
retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree’'s annual
retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 216,804
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 148,304
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 366,108
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Total Nonemployer OPEB L iability

The portion of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with the
District at June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 40,209,676
$40,209,676

The Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2019 which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020,

The total Non-Employer OPEB Liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $2,461,131.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue were based on the plans June 30, 2020 measurement date.

At June 30, 2020, the District's proportion was 0.0591979583 percent, which was
an increase of .0000996352 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2019.

The State, a Non-Employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired
PERS. TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District's proportionate share
percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No.
75 is zero percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the
collective Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020 was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2020.The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the
pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2020

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-4.45%"* 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%*
Thereafter 1.55-4.45%"* 3.00-7.00%* Applied to

All Future Years

June 30 . 2019

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
inflation — 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-3.05%" 2.00-6.00%* 3.25-15.25%*
Thereafter 1.55-3.05%"* 3.00-7.00%" Applied to

All Future Years
*-. Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers"”
(TPAF/ABP), "General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2020. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
table with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2020. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2020.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Input (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation were based on the
results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 — June 30,
2018, July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for TPAF,
PERS and PFRS, respectively.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases
to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For post-65 medical benefits, the
actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2021 through
2022 are reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years.
For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.0% and decreases to a
4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 was 2.21% and 3.50%
respectively. This represents the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

Shown below are details regarding the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability for the
Measurement Period from June 30, 201¢ to June 30, 2020:

Balance at 6/30/19 $24,702,764
Changes for the year:
Service cost $1,267,907
interest 897,197
Differences between expected
and actual experience 6,675,682
Changes in assumptions or
other inpuis 7,344,926
Membership Contributions 21,217
Benefit paymenis - Net (700,017)
Net changes 15,506,812
Balance at 6/30/20 $40,209,676
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Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in_the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above
as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated
using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher
than the current rate:

June 30, 2020
1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease (1.21%) Rate (2.21%) Increase (3.21%)

State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $48,474,840 $40,209,676 $33,747,114

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2020, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2020

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
State of New Jersey's
Proporticnate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $32,458,606 $40,209,676 $49,439,477
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2020, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s OPERB associated with
the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 6,104,876 $ 5,438,007
Changes of assumptions 6,839,533 4,588,152
Changes in proportion 1,989,332 230,910
$ 14,933,741 $ 10,257,069

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to retired school employee’s OPEB associated with the District
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Measurement
Period Ended
June 30, Amount
2021 $377,443
2022 $377,443
2023 $377,443
2024 $377,443
2025 $377,443
Total
Thereafter $2,789,455

$4,676,672
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District’'s proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available reports
on the OPEB plan. Those reporis may be obtained by writing to the Division of
Pension and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295 or on their
website at:

http://www state ni.us/treasury/pensions/gasb-notices-opeb.shimi

LITIGATION

The Board attorney's letter advises that there is no litigation, pending litigation,
claims, contingent liabilities, unasserted claims or assessmenis or statutory
violations which involve the Board of Education and which might materially affect
the Board's financial position.

CONTINGENCIES

The Board receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the U.S.
Government in the form of grants. Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional
upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicabie
regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible purposes. The State
and Federal grants received and expended in the 2020-2021 fiscal year were
subject to the U.S. OMB Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08
which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited in conjunction
with the Board's annual audit. Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative {o
federal awards and state financial assistance programs will be discussed in the
Single Audit Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all
grants and cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by
the grantors. Further, the School Child Nutrition Program is a recipient of federal
reimbursements and is subject to certain related federal regulations. These federal
reimbursements are subject t0 subsequent audit and interpretation by the New
Jersey Department of Education. The Board management does not believe such
an audit would result in material amounts of disallowed costs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; and natural
disasters. The District maintains commercial coverage covering each of those
risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage is sufficient to preciude
any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled claims have not exceeded
this commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage is
sufficient to preciude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled claims
have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected
to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit
Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the
New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees
and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for
amounts due to the State. The following table is a summary of District
contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits
paid and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust fund for the current
and previous two years:

Interest and

Ended Employer Employee Amount Ending
June 30, Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance

2021
2020
2019

NOTE 11:

$177.61 $15,868.70 $6,269.00 $33,607.25
255.22 21,023.13 16,908.67 23,829.94
296.69 10,046.55 33,293.86 19,460.26

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED - GAAP BASIS

General Fund - Of the $5,813,433.59 in General Fund Balance at June 30, 2021,
$43,644.97 has been assigned for encumbrances; $3,210,177.66 has been
restricted in the Capital Reserve Account; $300,000.00 has been restricted as
excess surplus; $350,000.00, has been restricted as excess surplus - subsequent
years' expenditures; $400,000.00 has been restricted for Tuition Reserve,
$24,007.55 has been restricted for Unemployment, $378,108.64 has been
restricted for Maintenance Reserve; and $1,207,494.77 is unassigned.
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CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS - BUDGETARY BASIS

In accordance with N.J.S.A.18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, c73 (S1701), the
Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the
New Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996
(CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to restricted General Fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required
minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their subseguent years’ budget.
The excess fund balance resulting from the year ended June 30, 2021 is
$300,000.00.

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was originally established by the District for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal
years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the
district’s approved Long-Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the
LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve
by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes. A
district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the
voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuantto N.J.S.A.
19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d)7, the balance in the account cannot at
any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve during the year ended June 30, 2021, is as
follows:

Balance, July 1, 2020 $ 232777432

Deposits:

Interest Earnings $ 14,166.11
Transfer of unexpended

capital projects funds 38,458.18

Board Resolution 829,779.05

882,403.34

Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 3.210,177.66
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TJUITION RESERVE ACCOUNT

A tuition reserve was established by the District in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23-
3.1(f). This reserve is for formal sending/receiving relationships between two
district board of educations established under subchapter 3 of the business service
code pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:38-19. The maximum amount that may be
restricted at year end is 10% of the estimated contract year.

The activity of the capital reserve during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, is as
follows:

Balance, July 1, 2020 $400,000.00
Deposits:

Board Resolution 200,000.00
Withdrawals:

Budget (200,000.00)
Balance, June 30, 2021 $400,000.00

MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

A maintenance reserve was established through a board resolution by the District
for the accumulation of funds for the required maintenance of a facility in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9 as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S1701).
N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-31(c), 18A:7G-13 and N.J A.C. 6A:23A-14.2 permits districts, by
board resolution, to transfer undesignated general fund balance to the
maintenance reserve account if approved in the district’s original budget certified
for taxes or if the district received voter approval by a separate proposal at budget
time or by special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41(a), 18A:7F-41(b) and N.J.A.C. BA:23A-
14.3 permit a district board of education to transfer by board resolution (prior to
June 30) any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation
amounts to the maintenance reserve for withdrawal in subsequent school years.

The activity of the maintenance reserve during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021, is as follows:
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MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

Balance, July 1, 2020 $318,750.00
Deposits:
Interest Earnings 2,358.64
Board Resolution 57,000.00
Balance, June 30, 2021 $378,108.64
INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:

Food $1,029.89
Supplies 1,811.07
Total Inventory $2,840.96

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Law of 1996) is the difference between market value and cost
of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of
non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a choice of the deferred compensation plans
created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The
plans permit participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Amounts deferred under the plans are not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. Since the District does not have
any property or rights to the plan assets and no fiduciary relationship exists
between the District and the deferred compensation plan, the plan assets are not
included in the District’s financial statements as of June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2021

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A liability for
compensated absences atiributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees are
paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to accumulate
unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent years. Upon
retirement, employees shall be paid by the District for the unused sick leave in
accordance with the Districts agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types are
recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30, 2021, a
liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types in the
district-wide Statement of Net Position of $280,871.26.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is
recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30,
2021, no liability existed for compensated absences in the proprietary funds.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30, 2021:

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $29,196.56
Special Revenue Fund $29 196.56
$29,196.56 $29,196.56

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received. All balances are to
be liquidated within one year.
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NOTE 20:

NOTE 21:

Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the financial
statement date through January 27, 2022 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District has
determined that there are no subsequent events needed to be disclosed.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS/RESTATEMENTS

As of July 1, 2020 the District implemented GASB Statement No. 84 Fiduciary
Activities (GASB 84). Certain agency funds previously accounted for activities
that are not considered fiduciary in nature and are now reported in the
Governmental Funds. The District restated the net position and fund balance of
the funds indicated below to appropriately reflect the June 30, 2020 balances as
follows:

Governmental Funds
Special Revenue

General Fund Fund
Fund Balance 06/30/20 $ 4,375,370.14 §
Adjustments:
Unemployment Compensation 23.829.94
Student Activities 22 881.47
Fund Balance 06/30/20 (As restated) $ 439920008 % 2288147
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Township of Green Brook School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2021

NOTE 21: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS/RESTATEMENTS (Continued)

Fiduciary Fund
Liabilities 06/30/20 $ 37,257.80
Adjustments:
Payroll deductions and withholdings (4,376.33)
Accounts Payable-Student Activities (2,576.85)
Due to student groups {20,304.62)
Interfunds (10,000.00)
Liabilities 06/30/20 (As restated) $ -
Fiduciary Fund
Net Position 06/30/20 3 23,629.94
Adjustments:
Unemployment Trust {23,829.94)
Net Position 06/30/20 (As restated) $ -
Governmental
Activities
Net Position 06/30/20 $ 7,708,702.54
Adjustments:
Student Activities 22 881.47
Unemployment Compensation 23 820,04
Net Position 06/30/20 (As restated) $ 7,755413.95
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

83




slayoesy jo salees
UORaruEsUl swoy - suesbord tenboy
$-9 SepRIO
G| sepeigy
uspebiapury
fooyasald
slleiboly senbay - UoDNJISU}
ASNIAXE LNJHHND

BIENLIONZDE

SBNUBADY [BI0)

$82.N0G S}BIS {BI0L
soueinsy) Ajqesys wie buot
. palabpng uou-ESIpe JUSWBINSY 1S0d
pajefipng-uou-ucHNGUILOD AINNJG [BIDOS Avd L Pasinguiay
palBpNG-uoU-TD 0N AVdl HBUSq-UO
pajsbipng-uou-sucgnqUILeD Svd L Jeusq-uQ
SPIY 181G B0
ply Anoag (esicaed
Py uoeonps |ensds ealobajes)
Py Aleuipioeiiy
PIy ucijeuodsuel ] feasobaje)
SBJINOS ABG

$824N0% (8907 [Bj0L
SONUBADY SNOBUBHBOSIIN PIDIISaY JBUID
spuny aajesey (edes uo palues jsame
BAJBSDY SoUBLSIUIBKN UO PaLIED [Saraily
SONUBASY SNOBUR|DISIN PaJOUISAIUN
SV JRYI0 wosd S99, uoyepodsue) |
S{ENPIAIPU} WO S99 uohepodsuel |
QIEIS UARIAA SV BUI0 WO UojIng
S{ENPIAIPUL WOL UORINL
Anaxe] (ED0

$8UN0S (B0
SINNIATY

00°vLFSL 00'9StL 00'089's1H 00'0£9 00°000°'S1
89°0 1ErLe'sss'y 00'51E'554°) 00'EZ6'0L 00°268'789°'L
20121 £6°0P7'996'L 00'295'996'4 00'ZZ0'ee 00°0ps'SE6's
00'ELP'SL 00 0ey'eeE 0O'EPS'ebe 00'EPe'ehZ
0L'951've 04°129'g818 00°000'€5Z 00°090'¢5Z
Zh'e89'ros e ZrELG 0% 8¢ 00518°266'7C 00'518'266°02
6. 168998 C Bl cEe oes'y 005E8 915 & 005E9'915 1
002913 00ZoL'E
00'629'/6% 00'BLYL6S
61169 L6V 61169267
00'609's 00'609'GE
00'585'L28°L 00'695'448'L
0006941 000692}

00'6ES'8Y 006888y 00'6EL'8Y

00°L06'926 00°L06'9Z6 00°106'8Z6
00°L00'2bE 00" LO0'L6S 00°000'062 00°000'052

00'5656'682 00°S65'69C 00°$65'682
£9'00€'961 £909Z LI9'E2 00096 08Y £C (0026087 €2
19448 -3
LLess'el LLoaL'v 00'00¥ 00'00¥
$9'852'2 r9°858'Z 00°001 00°001
$2°69.'89 £Z'694'¢8) 000005k L 00'000°G1 L
{0o'099'9) 00°099'g 00'099'9
oL'e6e'y 0L'EsE'Y
16'1¥2'2LL 16 Lre'ies 00°'000°681 0000’81
{50'ov9'es) SEESR'SYL 00005202 00'005'202

$ 0002816622 $ 00°0ZE'L66'22 3 $  0002¢'L66'ZZ $
[EREVETe A LDV FELLENTE] SININONINY =5and
[RIEVHOAYA ONV SHIASNYY L TYNIDHO
FONVIUVA 139an4
GIONVHD OGNV SR80 LGNS INT SanNIATd 40 SINGNSLYLS SALVEVANOD
EERCEEREDR]
#I3aHs

wbOu LIgIHXE

84



85

£L606°C JERBZ LT L Q0'809'6LE L 0005Z'LE 00'BSE'9%L | J8juay 904n0sey J Wooy evnosay (el
ipeoe'e 65080 00'OPE'S 00 GrE 9 sayddng jeseuss
ze0 89°202'€12'} 00'89Z'SLZ'L 0005248 008102831 sieyoea | o salreleg
L1BlUEY) 82UN0sYY f WOoY BANAsSsyY
£9'88. e 86L'6LE 00°.86'61 | CO6LL 0Q'802'6LE seniiqes|( [eioneysg [ejo ]
99'/8/ pelel 00626 00's¢8 sayddng |eseusg)
1670 £0°9Z5'6% 00'L25'65 00295 0069688 HORONISU] 10} SBUB(ES JaUIO
00°5£5'65 0058564 00412 00'8LE'68 siayoea ] jo ssuejeg
‘sepyigesiq [BioineYeg
FYEo0 L 86 EL0'Zk} 0080681 0090681 sapyiqesyq ebenbue so/pue Buluiee fejo)
AT 9L680'¢ 00'i8¥'e 00°18Fe saljddng (esausg)
0Z'1i9'9r 08'€Z6'8E1 00'565'584 00°565'581 S484yOES] JO saUBlEg
=elpqesiq obenbue Jopue Buluesn
uopesnpg jeweds - Uollongsy)
19 vol LOOPS'04S T BTG GELY 06°805°8L L 8Z'6.. 819 sweiboid Jenbel Bjol
00000 00°00GE 00'000' SHOOGIKE Y,
vE'ELZ'ED Y6'9L9'0LE 8Z°068'CLE 00°'000'8 82 068'69¢ sayddns fesouen
LZH00'9 $ 8L006TH) $ 00'$96'8L1 $ 00'LEB'ES $ 00vEO'SEL $ (seyes 006 - 00Y) $eoLss paseyind JaYIO
{panunuos) sweiboid JenBay
HTEVEOAVINIY WNLoV 1350ma TwNId SINIRANIAY 1=5ang
AN8vHONYS QNY SHIASNYHL TYNIDYO
ADNVIHYA 135ang
HvdA Vo512 IHL 503
Xk NY 1390Mg - FONVT
F I3RS

«b0n LIGIHX3



£ Eee 0Ly §0°6e8 1429 8z /157899 00'€82'05¢ BE 720 4669
"Edcer vBE 818/ Bee 00196'EZY 00 GFL b KT A4
66562 0L 10 vZ5 8% BO0LEEZL 00 0lECel
66 G6L 9L [0 VI8 oF 00 GZE €21 00 0L E2lk
go00v + B0 Cav & o600 L
00°'000°9 00'006'9 00°000's
56526 L0BLL'SH 00'505'py 00'506'¥¥
00'0.L0'0b 00°S6E'LE 00'59p'} L 00'59¥'LL
IV ECL 61 £5689 67 00E29'890 00 €25 89
005518 00692 € 000Ch Ll 000ZF L
16°968'S £0'196'C 00°'959'9 00°858'9
06°208'Z 0S°ZTYL 00°050'E 00°050'S
00'FLL'Y 00122L'er 00°56%"Lp 00°S6Y' b
T2 660 A7 G1L085E 00 LOB'E4 00106 24
00995 00°666'C 00°525°0% 00625 0%
STEES'EY G22Zve'6l 00°94£'29 00'9/£'29
v v 09 LIV LY B0 Zer Ly 00°8%L 00 722 OF
g 00 96¢ 00007 00 00p
or0 09'120'Lp 00220 1 00'8rL 00'vLZ'0p
ILevy i B2 55659 00 SPYLLE 600001 0OSPYaLL
WAT3 62 0LL € 00'66L°C 006612
0012¥ LS 00°'52Z'29 00'9v9'piL 00000'E oo'epe'eld
e 081 15 $ 0ZOLE LIV $ 00128825 % ¢ 00'6Z0°2¢E ¢ B0 ErS 66T ¢
{FTavVHOAVANTT WNLoY BT g3 N ] SINIRaONSNY I55ang

FA1EVHOAYA ONY SHIISNYHL TNIDHO

FONVIMVA 13oang

T IIINS

wb=0 LIGHHXE

uoorIsU| - fEjoL
swelBold [BUOIONNSUl IR0 BI0L
100UIS Jetuwng J8jo ]

LIOIONGSU] [O0YRS JBWWNg 810 ),
salddng |essuds)
(59195 (0G-00F) SIDINBZ PISEYDING JAUICD
UoorUISL| SO SSUBES JSUID
saueEs

AUOYOMISUL [00UDS JawWng

$J81UTY PAIOSUOTS J0OYDS [B10L,
spelio BUo
sleusiew pue seyddng
(55188 005-008) SIVUNISG PRSBUOIN
saueeg

‘SN paIosLOdS oYIS

SBPANDY Je[NDLINSA-00) PBIOSUNdS J00YIS (BI0]
s|eualel pue salddng
saugeg

ISSBAIDY FRINDLINA-00) PRIoSUDdS |00y

uonsnasy) woResnpg [enbuyig ejo)
sg)|ddng [eiauan
SIBUORE | JO SBLeRS

‘uonangsy) uolesnpdg (enbulpg

[Epalway f Sjig Jiseq (RI0L
sapddng (BoUaD
slayoea ] j0 Salees
(Etpaay [ S|IHS dised

uojjeanp3 (eedg ol

86



SADAISG BIIXT ~ SUSPNIG - SIVIAISS Moddng JBUIO [BioL

$B0IAIS [BUOITEINDZ - [BUOISS}0Id PEsSEydmd
souees
$eOIMBS BIPG - SJUepniS - Seolueg poddng Byl

S90S PBIBIBY B Ld ‘10 'udsads - saowisg Loddng ayio feled

sleualey pue sayddng
SIS BUOIEONDT - [BLIOISSE)0Id POSBYIIN
salees
SANIASG PeleleY 9 Ld ‘1O 'Yoseds - seoineg Hoddng Jagi

SODIAISS UIIEaH (210

spelq0 o
sjeuaje pue ss|ddng
$80IAIBS [ECRIYSE | PUB [BUOISSSI0I Paseydinid
sauees
SO0IMSS UHEDH

STUAIDG NIOAA |EI00S PUE SOUBDUAYLY [BIOL
seyees
SA0IAISG HIOM [B0S PUE soUBpUBRY

UORINASY - SRINypUadxg peInguISIPUL BI0L
0 - vonn L
Bjels uym paddesipueH sy} 10 SI00LSS 818AlLd 0} Loy
p3 ds - JOUISIA [00YOS 1BUOHEA0A AUNGY O} UoRIn
JEINGaY - JOUISIQ [004OS [BUCHEIOA AjUncD) o} uogny
{e10adg - S)e1S 3U) UM ST JBUIO OF uomn |,
g JenBay - O1EIS B} UM ST JSUED Of wogin [
‘uafongsuyy
saINYpUadXT PAINGUISIPUN

pe Lst'ov Sv'el8'61. 00982 092 cOLLE'L 00°525'85/
g2 lse ot glevl'ell 00000°€te 00°000'eLZ
62'902'y LLBZL'ERS 00988 L¥S 0018’ 00°6Z5'6PS
B6E QLY VE 19'995'562 00'¢88'62¢ 00006 00'€R0'6ZE
/8808 £9'995'C 00'2.8'¢ 00°248'S
16710108 £0'860'28 00°00Z'26 0e'o0Z'ze
§0°900'4 S6'669'052 00'806'162 00°008 00°800'1€2
SrLel Ze'rR0'83L $8'6ZZ LOT 00 0er0C £6'66.'081
00°000'L 00°000°L 00°000°L
rl Th 29'599'08 £6'6EL'EE 00'siv'LL £6'999's)
00°5EL'L 00'528'2 00°'096'c 00'096'S
§1'585'8 ST P6S'PS1 000EL'EaL 00'656'2 00'sLl o8t
A Pr'SL6PE O0'L1E0' L2 00asE'e 00°'€29'€2
95 vLLiE P oL6TE 001E0°C 00'35S'E 00°'eL9'¢T
0% 125881 09'62.'5ZL'6 00 LOEFIED {00°621 '8¢5} 00'9LP'2SE 6
{o0°£20'eL) 00°2.0'eL

11°989'231 A A AN A 00F28'iPs (00'599'924) 00'681'899
YOr8L'y 96'G18'0Y 00°000'1S 00°086'9y 00'080'y

00'sLL'8 00G.L'8 ooslL'e
PRLS L 9L 0LL980'L 00'5HE'851°L (00'sL8'28) oo0zZ'eve’)L
SL5L § GZL82'yss'. 00°458'755"L $ Q0'ZBY'Z0T $ 00698'L5e’L
T1EvHOAVINT] WALV THS0RE YR SINENONINY 139ang

fA1EVHOAYS NV SHIJSNYEL TYNIDHO
BONVINYA 13nandg
T JC dIHSNARDL
i 133HS

wbmOu LIGIMX3E

87



67 i98'e 15°686'08 00'EER'SY 00'850°C 00'5LL°EY
0006’9 00°0L6'9 00016'a
£4°88% 818 QU oor'y 0000t 0000t
9£°690°) POESHEE 00'E25 ¥ 00'856'} o0'ees'ze
12°0068°2 €Z'BEE LI il A 00°0ee QooLe8lL
LL0 £26EL'L 0o0vL'L co0ee 00°0t8'9
00°006'L 00°00Z'Y 6000121 0000421
09'L25'99 OF'EGL 655 00'5/8619 00'9c8'9Z 00'6v8'88S
00°0EC 00'S¥8'Z 00°640' 00’50
06'94L'L oLare's 00'€20'6E 00'€20°5E
8Y'EYLD Zirog's 00rse'ol o0'ost 005101
E'906°0F 65°999'2P 00°8.8'€8 00'sL5°eR
500 S6'461'69 00261 '69 00599 00°225'89
9£'858 P9 265 EEY 00'gsv'ver 00°1L00'92 00'5SY'80Y
og'eve 0L'PS9'tS1 00'€08'c51 00°094°t 00°epL Z8Y
85622 Zr'agt 00'sLP 0oLy
yZ'il 9LEYS 00°09g 0008 Q0005
8¥L $ Z5'9Z8'Z5tE 00'826'251 $ 000041 $ 00'82Z'ISE
TTEvVEOAVANT NIV I55GMg ToNId STNINANTIANY 139014
A18VHOAYS ONY SHIJSNYHL TYNIDHO
SONVIRVA 139009
SFIF3RE

«=0u LIGIHXZ

ArRigr] 000G / SEOIMSS BIPSJ JeUOBINPT [Bj0L

sieuslew pue sayddng
(sa19g 00S-00F) SADIMSS PasEYING IOLQ
salejeg

Aleiqr (004G [ SEAAISS BRI (BUCHEBONDY

HelS [eUOnonsy) - Se5A9S Hoddng Bu0
1 SENABS UCHOMUISLY §O JuBwaaosdwy [elo ]
SSOIABG "UOB | PUR J0Ld POSBYIM
Kelg [euaissalold Jsyi0 Jo saueeg
HRIS FRUONONJISUL - S8 oddng e
SEOISS UDEINASU] JO JIStoACdu

swes ] Apris pIud LioL

sp2lg0 Jeu0
sfeusiel pue salddng
(sauss pO5-00Y) SBOUBS paseylInd BUG
SEOIASS [BUOIIEINPT 1RUOISSDI0IE PasSEYdIng
SIUBISISSY [EOLS|) PUB [BIB}SI08S JO SaLeles
Herg [BUCISSSJOL SR JO Saeles

swes | ApriS PID

souepIng (Bj01

sjeusiep pue soyddng

SBOIAIBG PESBUDING JBWO

LeIS [BUDISSBIOIG JBUYID JO SBUBES
‘BOUBPING

88



09'9¥L'0Z Or'LZ9'SeY 00°'88. G¥P 00°L85VT 00'L8l gy
0z ¥68 09°05€Z 00'shZ'e W0o000'L) 00'SPZ'Y
06'6v2'8 oL'gi8'y 00'5Z8'Z) 00'sZ8'ZL
19912 6EZ6L'PL 00 LES'LL 00'LLO'S 00°006'PL
180 6L°920'coL 00°LE0'E9L 00'99¢ 00'699'284
80'ERZ L Z6'90P P2 00°062'8%2 00'80Z'¢2 poErs'eTe
L'629'SE 85°055'658 00°08L'15¢ 00'.2.'82 00'E5P'2ZoE
05902 05'¢64 0 00°00%'04 06°00%"0L
1164 68'685' 00°'GL5'E 00'8L8'e
00veR's 00°000'01 00'P8R'EL {ooaLi’t) 00'000°sE
00°005 00'005 00°005
00'ses'y 00'090's2 00'585'62 00'685'62
00060t 00°009'1 00°009'L
£9°1.80°} LETYE'T 00'PZY'e 00'vY'e
00 orL'2 00'0LP gt 000L9'8L 000Le'8l
00°005'2¢ 00°005'ZE 00°008'L1 00°000°LZ
05'1.29'12 05°'8Ze'ey 00°000'0L 00°000's 00°000'se
PI-EN £2°00L'202 00'¢0L'202 {00'289'91} 00'68L'SEE
26°LbE'88 g0 [iy'et 00°58.°L8 00eer 00°/EE /8
06'850'} oL'iv6 60°000'2 000002
007008's ooooz'e 00'000's 00000'9
00°02¥' 42 00080°'L 00°005'82 00°005'82
00'690'9 00°LL0'L ooorl'L o0orL'L
Z0'0 $ 88vZTL'vy 00'SZL'vr $ oo'ezy $ 00°268'Sh
{(FTEVa0OAVANT) TLov EDCE RV FINTWONTNY 1354and
FA18VHOAYS ONV SHIASNYHL TYNIDHO
FONVIHYA 13sana
&F I33HS

w30 LIGIHXE

uogeASILILPY 004D sedinag Hoddng [ejoL

spalgo Jaylo
sjeusjep pue seqddng

{58198 005-00P)SBOIAES PBSEYIINY JEWIO
SIUBISISSY [B3LD|D PUB (BURJBID8S JO SHURRS

siediound Jssy  slediduid J0 seuees

UOBSILILDY J00UDS Seoneg woddng

LoelSILIWPY [21euas) saanas boddng o)

saa.4 pue seng diysiaquisy 308
saunjypusdxy snoaue|aosiy
1ou1sI] 2 Isuiebe sjuswabpng

ss|iddng Bupeay /Bujues ) esnoH -u 308

saUnppuadxg SNoaUERISI

asuadx3 [eaety precg

2aUoYda|B |  SUOREIIUNWWOT)

SENIAES [BUOISSRICLH PaseydIng B0

$804 JPNY |OUOY) [RUISIL| pu' Bunipuadxg

seoineg jeban
seuees

UolBIISIUREDY {E1BUSS) $80IJeS Hoddng

seopeg Buiiel | Jeis (euolonsul o],

sjeusiew pue seiddng
{005 -00F) SSRGS PISBUING JBUID

$20IAI9S [BUCHBINDS - [BUDISSJ0Id PIsByoIng
SIUBISISSY [BOUAID) PUB {BIEIBISS JO SBUBES

EIS [BUOISSIOL JAYID JO SeLReS

seoieg Bullies ] yeig feuononsu;

89



62222 6.'Z€959) 00°606°291 002026 00861 851
00'SHF E GoGhY'L 00'SYS 00006
S6°ZLLY 08'vZ8'ZS $Z'ICB'ES sz iEb'sl 00°00S'88
ya'osL't 18'6L9'LE 6278119 (sZ'159'9) 00'0Er'SY
o0 PSEVL'EL 00bbiel 00’9l 00B9E'SL
627008 7 i1cal ¢zl 00'996° .21 (00°229°2) 00'E6S OEL
00052 00'0s2 000001 00°600'%
ZLi00T $9°ZEL'0Z 00°'006'22 {00°000's) 00'006'LE
12°€86'E £2°Z80'Z0L 007980701 00'ELE'D 00'£69'L6
O LEDEE 1856228 00'065'95¢ {o0'6sicy 0062.'65€
0009 00'061°L 00008} 06008 1
S9° L5t SETYS'E 00°000'S 00°000's
TYIG6'L 85°0LY'6 00'e9eLE 00°002'L 00'£0lLsE
95'Lb9'sT $ py'SLe'g0e 00'2¥'2EE $ (o06EL'Y) $ 00'992'0cE
FTavHOAVANTY niov 1350ng TyNid SINIWONTAV Ig5ana
AEVHOAYS ONY SHIISNVHEL TYNIDUO
FONVIHYA EEjale[yt:
FEREERT)

w0 LGIHXE

sap|[I9e 4 j00Y0S 10} SURUSIUIR palnbay [210)

spefaQ JeYIo
sepddng {eLus
seoaeg sbueusiulely pue seday 'Buiuees))
saupes
Saljived (00UoS JO) soueuaUrel painboy

ABOIOUYDS 1 UOTBLLLIOIU] SATRIISIUILIPY [B]01

SRS PESBUDING 1BUI0
SB0IASS [BIIUYDD) pasBYOINg
ssuees

ASOOUDS | UOHBLLIOIL SARISIMIWPY

OAIBG (IUST [BIOL

samjipuadxg Snosue|EosiN
steusiey pue sa|ddng
{005-00F) SBOIMBG YoINg "DSIN
seuees

BOIAAS [BIUSD

90



15°¢19 6128y 00000 00°000's
RFAL] By LZE'Y 0070005 00°000'S
SRZ00ELL S1'0/4'800°L O0'ELL LTV 00'09ECH Q0ELE'80LL
00°005 00'saL 00'50T' 4 00°502°E
0L°6v1'08 0e° 0P '8 00°065'052 00°065'082
28'vL6'e 20'542'29 00°06L'5L 00°06L'SL
Z6'iPE'E 80°L0L'02 00'550°08 {00 sPt'2) 00°005'28
00'LP0'8LL oy Lr0'ell 00'zL8's1 60'6sy'Zal
$9°0L2'0L 9E'066'0L 00L2L'ze 008 0OTLLLE
PoLIE'S 9L8EL'TL 00°009°52 00°009°62
00001 00°008"L 00001} {00'008) 0070022
L6 LPS'L $ S0'eER'els 007128128 $ 00ve 8 00.pe'12S
EFTEVEHOAVAND) TYNLIVY TE5aNE YN SINTNONTAY 99ang
{AEYHOAY S CONY SUAJSNYYL TYNIDRIO
FONVIHYA 1390ng
S# [33HS

«b=0u LIGIHX3

spuncuDy Jo desydry pue sied [ejo)

se|ddng [elauas

Spunoio Jo deexdn pue alen

Sa0IIAS [BIPOISND [BI0L

$193190 210

(Ayouoery pue jesy) Abiaum

(seo jeimjeN) ABlauz
salddng [eIsuan)
aouRInSUL

saoinag Aladosg peseyound Buyi0
SESISS eduUBUBUle pue Jeday 'Buiues)n
SPOIMSG [BOIULDB ) PUR |BUOISSSJOIY PaseydIng

salees

SAOIAIBG [BIPOISND

91



sjyeusg 9sAodwy - slysueg pajedoyeuN |B10t

wawAed I8 pashun
slgeusg aakodws Jl2Ui0
SjUBWRSINGIEY UGN}
sjouag Uieol
LOESUBALLDS) SUSWNION
uonesuadweon Juswicdwaun
Jeinfigy - SUCHNGUIUOY JuawaISY Jeyi0
SHTcf - SUORNGLILOY) TUBLLBILSY BWO
i3 - SUCKNQEIUCD “4'Y'd’L
suonnquiued Aundes [e00g

syauag safoidw] - sjfauag pajedcieun

$90IAI9S UOeHOdsUR) | JUBpNIS BI04

sp8lg0 BUl0
uoiepodsued ) - $85ASG PasEYIING SNOaURIEISIN
8YS1D ® 08T - (Suspn)g pa-2edg)- seoiAeg PalIRIUD)
sluawsaIBy JHET - (Sjuapnig 'pa '8ds) SE0Iag PaBUOD
siopusA - ('SPIS p3 dg) semases enuon
sIopusp, - (jooyog pue

BUWIOH UsaMag UBY] JSIOD) SBDIAGS PRIDBAUDD
SIOpUsA, - (JOOUOS P BUIDH LASMIDY) SEOIAISS POIDBIU0YD
{og anduon-Siusiied nal ul ply -~ SS0ISS PBjDRIU0)
wesbold suel) wSL10 2 O53 -89 Juewsbeuey
$ enbay - (jooyos pues swoH
usamlag) vonepodsues | ndnd 1oy ssueleg

$e0ia19G uonepodsuel ) JWBphns

T 6926LE S EET FEs ¢ 00°€ZLES) & {00 viv'eee) 0U'iEL Ier e
0000004 000000 06'0000L
00°L0L'2 00'6£0'S 00'0bL'L 00°0F8'L 00'008's
SL06Y'SL $Z'508'61 00°000'§E 00'000'sE
98'Z60'7ZZ #1'522'06L'Z 00'BLP'ELY'T {00'61.2°vEE} 002899822
00°628'6 0004 2LE 00'60F' 221 (aorezL't1) 00'8ES'SEL
00°000'S4 00°000'sL 0000051
1£°0 69'852'G 0U'664'S 00'v6 00'699's
B0'YZT 6T 16'762°0.2 00' L5662 00°245'662
80°0/8C 26'664'9¢ 00°0LL'0¥ 00°0LL'0Y
£ELGLTE 19869881 00°058'002 00'068'002
Pr5/550¢ R T Al 00°200'6E9°L 00000 | 00°200'9E9°L
00002 007002 00002
ao'osL's 00009 00°082's 00'084°S
PR TR A ev'9.0'6E2 oo'ves'cer o00'vee'ser
§9'/86'1L2 SL'I£8'6 00'GLZLE 00°000°2 00'5.Z62
00008 1L 00°008'1 1 0000841
00'8L6°2¢ 00°Lit'e 00'GeE' LY 00'G8E" LY
60'pZL'08 16°026'56% 00'569'626 {00"000'2) 00’569 LES
007000y 00°000'65 00'000°e9 00000} 00°000'28
0Z'297'6 08'ZeL'0l 00°000°02 00'000°02
86°0 $ 20208 00'££0'2S 008028
T 1avE0AVANT) TnLov 135an8 TWNId SINGWOINIAY ia5ang
[ATEVHOAYS ANV SHIASNYHL TYNIDHO
ADNYIEYA 139and
&# [33H8

w0 LIBHX3

92



[CEEEETAY) $ 60'9.57T80'L2 $ 1EYeT6ie'se $ 00'6EY L6l $ 1Z'¢8L L1962 $ SAUNLIONIJXE TYLOL

[ A2 00 Pl vt 00PLT YL S[00YDS FSLBYD O} SpUNy JO IBjSURIL
[A 0g'¥80°60L 00'88Y 6¥1 Q006426 00'669'95 AVLENO TYLIHYO WL0L
00'669°95 00'669'98 00'669'95 SEOIAISS LOOIUISUOD puE uosnbay s3lle ] [el0L
00'669'9G 00'669'95 00'669'85 Buipund ygs uo ansag 9aq Joj jUsiIssassy
SB0IAIBS UOHONIISUCY) pue uolsmboy sanibey
0L'7Zy 0F 08'69E'28 00°068.'28 00°06.'26 swdinby ®o)
04’002 og0z6'ot 0o'LeS’ Ly 00Ze' iy funsag-panquisipur)
Q0FZLOF 00'SEPLL 00'695°14 00'685'LS SIO0LOS JO "WiIBW "bay-paInqSPUN
Justudinbg
AYILNO WLIEYD
(85792.'10¢2'L) 64°162'656'9¢C LZ'125'189'5C 00'6¥3'¥0L LE'2L8'9YS'ST FASNILA INTHHND - STHNLIANIEXA WLOL
[{$:R: 181940 ri'esl'leg'or £6'E09°C96'81 {00'PE9'SY) £687L£2'600'6L seunypuadxg peinguisipun jejol
{(62'80L°€00'¢) 64°90.'€00' Aundeg @oogrInisusd Jvdl [elo],
{00°Z8L°)) 00°Z94°L ouensul Aungesiq uus ), Suol
(6L 169'26%) 6L169°L6Y pajebprg-Luou-uopnguiucy AUND8E [BI0S Avd L PasInguey
{c0629'268) 00619165 peebpny UQU-IBaIpapy JUBWSlaY 1504
(00°609'6E) 00°609°6E pejebpng-uou-19 0N Jvdl HBusq-ug
(ooses'Lie't) $ 00'588'L28'E $ $ $ 8 pajebpnqg-ucu-sualnqiiued IvdL Jeusqug

‘(pejabpng-uoN) SUOINGLIUCD Hvd L JIBURE-UQ

HTEVIOAVENT VLoV IFoand TwnNid SINIWONIAY i39and
A18vVHOAVS ONY SuZASNYY L TYNIDYHO
FIONVYIHYA 139aNg

O [33AS
«b~0u H1gIHX3

93



BSEEY'ELB'S $

{0o°Lse'02ZL)

{dvvo) spuny feyuswiwanch sad souejeq puny

siseq YY) Uo paziubooal jou waswled pre 1eap Joud
{dvYD) sjuswele)s spuny jeuswulenct o) uogeloucoay

aoueleq pun} paufiisseun

swiep juswioduisun - pajogsey
BAISS31 UoIN - pajoIlsay
BAISSHI BOUBUBIUIEL - pBJOLISEY
anjasal [endes - pajolsey

seimupuadxe seak Juanbasgns 105 payeubisap - snidins $S30Xa - POPOLISaY

Jeak Wanno - smdINg SSOOXa - pEjOLISeY
SAOUBIGUUNOUD pud-1eah - psublssy
:uonenudessy

0€ sunr ‘saoue(eq pund
pajelsay ‘| Anp ‘seoueeg pund
wauasnlby pousd Iold
1 Alnp ‘saouefeq pund

sgaInos Bupueuy

Jaiie pue sainkpuadxa Jayio pue saunjpuadxe
JaA0 $80IN0S HuduBLY JBUIO PUS SSNUSABI JO SSIX
saainos Buitledy Jauyio (810 )

SpUnd SBLR0O WOl sIgsues ]

(sesn) seoinos Buisueuy JaUi0

sarmpuadxa {lepun) JOAo
$3NUSAS] S0 (ADUBIOYaP) SS30XT

B4 P8L'CE0'D $
L16pR'Ize't
§5°L00'¥2
00°000'00F
po'801'8LE
gg2lrote's
00°000°08E
00°000'00E
L6bre'sy $
Z1'HOR'GEE'T 65 ¥3.'eE0'9 $ €8ErirI0T ¢ (o0'8ep'L6L) ¢ £8'935 Live
80°68EGLE Y
P6'6ZR'EL
PL'G6SS LEYY PL85S'L6P'Y ¥1655' 16Vt
TLPOR'SEEE LG'gee'els'L (lz'sov LLg) (00°6EF L6L) (12°0/6°6L9)
B '85P'8E 2195k'8e
gL 8BSV 8¢ 21'85¢'8%
ygapeleg ¢ £eLEE'BLIY L ¢ (Zs0r.LL8) ¢ (00°6EV L61) $ (Z0.6619)
T TEVEOAVINN ROV T3Z50n4 TvNid SLNZWNGNIINY I=oand
A18VHOAVE ANV SYIAASNYHL IWNIDHO
BONYIHYA 139andg
L# 133H8

w0 L19HX3

94



$5'080°E2 $
Iy ies'ee
iv188'ee
L0661 066l
06°620'cS 6Y'8.6'22¢ $ 6£'800'9.€ & 6e925'vLL $ o0osyIOZ
00'EBL'EE 69°059'904 89°2p8'aZL 69°2r8'8Z1
08'620'2E 08'620°Ci 08'620°CL
1S'G60'6L LS'660'GL 16°660°GL
0026122 00'eEl’s ousze'Le 0o'sZe'Le
8€'T6E'0L gETEE0L 8E'Z6E'01
06'2£8'0€ 08'/28'912Z 04'891°4p2 0L°'G89'Gh 00°08%'10C
06°/£8°0€ 96'v19'yL 98'ZsY'Sp 98°Z5V'SY
00°625'991 00'sZ25'981 00°280'0€ DO'8SY'9EL
v8/81'sE $  peimlice ¢ {g1vee'se) $ 00'220's9
{eeoenzs) 95°L21'eTe $ 6£'900'9L¢ $ 6e82G'RLl ¢ 00'08p'i0z
(00°098'72) LS'P16'E6Z 1GpLL8LE LS'P6Z'LLL 00'08%'L0Z
(€8°026'42) 50'£9Z'62 $ 88'€ET'4S ¢ 8REET'is $
IVNLOV OL VNI vALlov I95ang SINTWANINY IF5dnd
JONVIEVA TN fSH34SNVHL L39ana IWNIDIKEC

(€ sunp ‘soueleg pun4
(peeisay) | Aing ‘aoueleg puny

wswisnipy poiad iolid
L Ainp ‘aoueleg puns

sainypuadxg

{1apup) 190 sanusasy jo (Aousipiacy) sseox3
sanjipuadxa jelol
saodeg poddng |Bjot
SeRiAOY uspnig
sjeuajey pue seyddng
SaTMISS paseydInd Bl
sjyouag sshojdwg semAIDS paseYRIng
‘seoIuag poddng

uahonsy) fejo )

sanddng [elsuag)

uomn ),

SIBYORS} |0 selleles

‘uogonysul

‘SAANLIANIAX3

senuaAsy |Bjo L

$a0inog [B1epad

$82IN0S JBUID
‘SANNIATY

95



TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK - SCHOOL DISTRICT

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
NOTE TO RSI (REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP revenues and expenditures

Sourcesfinfiows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,
previously it was recognized for budgetary purposes.

The tast state aid payment is recognized as revenue for budgetary purposes
and differs from GAAP which does not recognize this revenue until the
subsequent year when the Stale recognizes the related expense (GASE 33)

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that encumbrances
are recognized as expenditures, and the related revenue is recognized.

Adjust for encumbrances:
Add prior year encumbrances
Less prior year encumbrances canceled
Less current year encumbrances

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds.

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total expenditures” from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Adjust for encumbrances:
Add prior year encumbrances
Less prior year encumbrances canceled

Less current year encumbrances

Total expendifures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund batance - governmental funds

96

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND
$  28,562,513.42 $ 323,177.56
116,189.00
(120,351.00)
3,260.00
(3,250.00)
(675.00)
$  28,568,351.42 $ 322,502.56
$ 27,082,576.09 $ 322,978.49
3,250.00
(3,250.00)
(675.00)
$  27,082,576.00 $ 322,303.49




REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART lil
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASB 68)
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PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART 1]

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Change in benefit terms:

Change in assumptions:

None

The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension

fiability in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending
June 30
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Change in benefit terms:

Change in assumptions:

None

Discount
RBale
7.00%
6.28%
5.66%
5.00%
3.98%
4.90%
5.39%
5.55%

l.ong-Term

Expecled
Rate of
Return
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.65%
7.90%
7.90%
7.90%

The following assumplions were used in calculating the net pension

liability in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending
June 30
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

Discount
Rate
5.40%
5.60%
4.86%
4.25%
3.22%
4.13%
4.68%
4.95%

Long-Term

102

Expected
Rate of
Return
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.65%
7.90%
7.90%
7.90%

Actuarial
Experience
Study Period
07/01/14-06/3018
07/01/14-06/30/18
07/04/11-06/30/14
07/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/08-06/30/11
07/01/08-06/30/11
07/01/08-06/30/11

Actuarial
Experience
Study Period
07/01/15-06/30/18
07/01/15-06/30/18
07/01/12-06/30/15
07101/12-06/30/15
07/01/112-08/30/15
07/01/09-06/30M12
07/101/09-06/30M12
07101/09-06/3012

EXHIBIT *L-4"



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS (GASB 75)
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EX “M-1"
TOW iP OF GRE] K SCHOOL DISTRICT
HE HANGE! ETOTAL
TOTAL OPEB LIABILE RELATED RATI
LAST TEN YEARS
Measurement Date Ended June 30,
2020 2048 2018 2017

Tutal Non-Employer OPEB Liability - State's Proportionate Share

of Total OPEB Liability Associated with the School District
Bafance at 6/30 $24,702,764 $27,519,389 $20.673,676 $31,710,212
Changes for the year:

Service cosl 1,267,007 1,307,560 1,393,162 1,685,041

Inferest 897,197 1,101,500 1,098,588 942,398

Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected

and actual experience 6,675,682 (4,858,182) (778,612)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 7.344,926 368,320 {3,157,988) (4,001,978}

Benefit payments 21,217 22,478 {735,859) (687,305)

Contributions from Members (700.017) {758,301) 25432 25,308
Net changes 15,508,912 (2,818,625) {2,154,287) (2,036,536)
Balance at 6/30 $40,209,676 $24,702,764 $27,519,389 $29,673,676
Covered Empioyee Payroll 8,344,436 8,496,894 8,617,732 8,535,218
District's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer

OPEB Liabifty as a percentage of the Districfs

Covered Employee Payroll -0- -0- -0- -0
State's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer

OPEB Liabilty associated with the District as a percentage

of the District's Covered Employee Payroll 481.87% 290.73% 319.33% 347.66%

Note: Schedule is intended o show ten year rend. Additionat years will be reported

as they become available.
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TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART IV

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumplions:
The following assumnptions were used in calculating the net OPEB fiability
in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending Biscount
June 30, Rate
2020 2.21%
2019 3.50%
2018 3.87%

106

EXHIBIT "M-2"



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.

110




$ gl'gsk'se $ vp'Ge6’ist $ Z9'€SP'0ZE
20'200'9¢ GG L0965 Z9'€09'G6
$ o'z $ 88'¢6L'ECL $ o000ss'vel
1202 0¢ ANNF HYIA INJHEN0 HY3A HOldd SNOILVIH4OHddY
JONVIVE J1Va OL SFENLIAN=dXE aasiagdy

eI R E]

}202 0 INNP 40 SV

seIo)

uoge|jeisu; teabysumg

jualaoeday SMOPUIAA

111



EXHIBIT "F-2"

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund $ 38,458.18
Totat Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 38,458.18
Net change in fund balances (38,458.18)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 38,458.18
Fund Balance - End of Year $
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EXHIBIT "F-2A"

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
SDA Grant 5
Transfer from capital reserve

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES;
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services
Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures %

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:
Project Number
Grant Dafe
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorization
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost
Percentage Completion

BUDGETARY BASIS

WINDOWS REPLACEMENT
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TOTALS €Os1

19,231.00 $§ 3 19,231.00 % 19,231.00

105,619.00 105,619.00 105,619.00

124,850.00 124,850.00 124,850.00

3.850.00 3,850.00 3,850.00

118,543.89 118,543.89 118,543,809

2,456.11 2,456.11 2,456.11

122,383.80 2,456.11 124,860.00 124,850.00
2,456.11 % {2456.11) %

1810-030-14-1003
116114
N/A
NiA
NIA
$48,077.00
$76,773.00
$124,850.00
159.69%
100.00%
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EXHIBIT "F-2B"

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOQL DISTRICT
CAPRITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE, AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
SWITCHGEAR INSTALLATION
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

REVISED
AUTHORIZED
PRIOR PERIODS CURRENT YEAR TCTALS CO8T

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

State Sources - Grant $ 2384062 $ 2384062 § 23,840.62

Transfer from capital reserve 71,763.00 71.763.00 71,763.00
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 95,603.62 95,603.62 95,603.62
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 7.700.00 7,700.00 7,700.00

Construction Services 51,901.55 51,901.55 51,901.55

Transfer to Capital Reserve Fund 36,002.07 36,002.07 36,002.07
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 59,601.55 36,002.07 95,603.62 85,603.62
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over

{Under) Expenditures $ 36,002.07 § (36,002.07) %

ADDITIONAL PROJECT INFORMATION:

Project Number 1810-030-14-1001

Grant Date 1614

Bond Authorization Date NIA

Bonds Authorization N/A

Bonds Issued NIA

Criginal Authorized Cost $119,605.00

Reduced Authorized Cost -$24,001.38

Revised Authorized Cost $95,603.62

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost N/A

Percentage Completion 100.00%
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LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(UNAUDITED)




TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
Contents Page
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and well being have changed over time. J-1to J-4

Revenue Capacily:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-510 J-8

Debt Capacity.
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place.  J-14 10 J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 10 J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports (ACFR) for the relevant year.
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Fiscal Year
Ended

June 30

2021
2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

Tuition

481,095.92
461,884.58
430,169.73
396,046.15
298,677.48
164,839.00

78,778.44

92,669.00
104,032.90

77,721.05

Source: District Records

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROO
GENERAL FUND OTHER LQCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Interest on
Investments

46,881.17
72,434.86
56,996.24
5,717.58
5,616.44
5,873.96
7.012.37
6,505.00
6,203.38
2,672.51

UNAUDITED

Use of
Facilities

5,000.00
34,152.50
83,357.00
84,447 50
51,524.11
60,785.00
43,015.08
98,323.00
26,805.00
68,634.72

124

HOOL DISTRICT.

Transportation
Fees

4,393.10
3,200.25
2,224.00
4,652.50
151,050.28
160,624.00
171,670.67
123,717.00
92,773.74
125,045.30

Other/
Miscellaneous

148,590.44
66,741.29
21,716.80

426,132.99
67,824.84
61,308.97
51,880.91
47,446.00
92,317.21

497474

EXHIBIT "J-5"

Fotal

6585,960.63
638,413.48
594,463.77
916,996.72
574,693.15
453,430.93
3562,457.47
368,660.00
322,222.23
279,048.32



0OLg Jed aie seel XBL §
sejuedwo wejsis sebusssely pue ydesbejs), ‘euoydela] jo luswdinby pue sjuewaldil 'ASUIORY JO BREA SjqEXE) ¥

UOEXE} §0 DIEOG AJUND Udes Aq paysygelse {anjea JexIeu J0 ey anea aruy jo sBesueniad sisos 1@ pessesse aq 0} pasnbel s; Ausdoid leey  eoN

Jossessy XB) edoiniy 3 KBNS 181 XB L SPI008) JINISK] :8IN0S

825k S9L'6E0'0LF'L LP'9LTE6E L 25 D0&'SLZESE'L 00Z'0rED 00S'E2EEL 00L'992" 1L oog'e D0V LLLZEL': ooLolg'es ZLoZ
£E5L B6Z'CEL'98E L LIT' L6 POE'L 000'L LE2'96P PO DOZ'OVE'9 006'820'4 L 006'0LE 202 LAL'SR DOO'EPOL9Q' 00548221 £1L02
oL 0$9'600'298'L G9L'029'882" L zrs £22'929'882"L 00Z'0rE'9 006'E02' 14 009'PES'H0T £20'98 009'008'8%C' L 006'099'Z1 7L0Z
9l ZO0'EST LY L ZL5066'F08 'S s 066'6068'602'L QoZ'0re's 006'€0Z'LL DOLPES0LZ 06668 00L'9rE's80'L OGL'GLE2L 5102
8Z9'L L18'099'v2r L 1S'8L0'EPE"s sap 9G6'BAYEPE'L 0080219 Q0828L'LL 002'904'812 96198 0CL'BLSPE0L 00L'0G5'L 9102
£99°L 9EL'E0L'00Y') BEE'LESBSEL 253249 TET'656'LSE'L [uialaa A ] oaL'ral'zL 004'808°8ET Ze0'48 0Op'ERg'E60"E 005'veS L Alog
BZLL BOE'SSE'S1Y L POLPELEPE'L rar'cLs ovZLIEebE'L ono'ozy's 00L'raL'zL 0P 8e8'LET ove'ss D0L'800'980" L DOE'EBL'LL 810z
743 60'LPE'ZEEL 028°206°29€") 0807088 OvdLZE'98E' 000'048'9 00164224 OrPr629'PET oro'sg 00tELE 'L 008'$Z8" kL 6102
zal'l 1T RLT'GEE'L ZBA'HPELIE'L 080°0% LGy e L NOO'5YE'8 noL'sPy'ZL 005'646'95C ZLL00L 008'SZL'Z0M L 005'valL'slL ozoe
869°L LG0'G8E'PRS'E & 0RI'SCB'SSY'L § 0BO'0RS § QOL'SPZ'SSYL  § 000'0SE'RL $ 00p'ZYE'TL § 008'LTG9LE % 00Z'26 $ 0O0E'WBZ'GLL'L $ DOS'Z66'GL 5 1202
areey %21 TnEA BREXE ] UOHERER BN T BN SUERy i T W0 Pue ERuenisey PUET WESER, b7
laoyas pazyenba Aunes) passessy [B10) by uney Jepuaed

wkead ol fenoy 183

15510 TO0HSE S00EE NI T8 305 JHSNAMOL

=2 ]

125



EXHIBIT "J-7"

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{rate per $100 of assessed value)
UNAUDITED
Township of Green Brook Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year General Total Direct Total Direct an:
Ended Obligation School Townshipof  Somerset  Qverlapping
June 30 Basic Rate (a) Debt Service (b) Tax Rate Green Brook County Tax Rate
2021 $1.592 $0.106 1.698 $0.456 $0.393 $2.547
2020 1.651 0.111 1.762 0.458 0.402 2.622
2019 1.631 0.112 1.743 0.459 0.408 2,610
2018 1615 0.114 1.729 0.480 0.404 2.593
2017 1.550 0.113 1.663 0.461 0.411 2.535
2016 1.514 0.114 1.628 0.462 0.405 2.495
2015 1.533 0.114 1.647 0.468 0.431 2,546
2014 1.553 0.111 1.664 0.469 0.414 2.547
2013 1.525 0.108 1,633 0.480 0.404 2.517
2012 1.424 0.105 1.529 0.449 0.389 2.367

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Coilector

Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a
general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other components of the
district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the
prebudget year net budget increased by the cost of living or 2.5 percent,
whichever is greater, plus any appending growth adjustments.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the

budget and the net valuation taxable
b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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EXHiBIT "J-¢"
TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROCK SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of

the Levy Collections in
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage of Subsequent
June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years

2021 $24,518,595 $24,518,595 100.00% -
2020 24,059,585 24,059,585 100.00% -
2019 23,617,814 23,617,814 100.00% -
2018 23,030,850 23,030,850 100.00% -
2017 22,167,019 22,167,018 100.00% -
2016 21,576,730 21,576,730 100.00% -
2015 21,451,972 21,451,872 100.00% -
2014 21,434,024 21,434,024 100.00% -
2013 21,197,655 21,197,655 100.00% -
2012 20,835,852 20,835,852 100.00% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)
Note: School taxes are coliected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State

Statute, a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property
tax balance in the amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the schoo! year.
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General Bonded Debt Outstanding

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT QUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
UNAUDITED

EXHIBIT "J-11

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Net General Actual Taxable
Ended General Bonded Debt Total Municipal Value * of
June 30, Obligation Bonds Outstanding Assessed Value Property Per Capita ®
2021 $9,0560,000.00 $9,080,000.00 $1,455,823,780 0.62% 6,993.84
2020 10,155,000.00 10,155,000.00 1,377,844,692 0.74% 6,987.75
2019 11,200,000.00 11,200,000.00 1,367,507,820 0.82% 7,056.08
2018 12,205,000.00 12,205,000.00 1,349,124,704 0.90% 7,060.25
2017 13,165,000.00 13,165,000.00 1,358,5631,389 0.97% 6,954.32
2016 14,085,000.00 14,085,000.00 1,343,079,451 1.05% 7,100.28
2015 14,975,000.00 14,975,000.00 1,305,990,512 1.15% 7,053.69
2014 15,835,000.00 15,835,000.00 1,288,626,765 1.23% 7,132.54
2013 16,665,000.00 16,665,000.00 1,304,497 277 1.28% 6,979.70
2012 17,465,000.00 17,465,000.00 1,393,216,418 1.25% 7,038.98
Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See ACFR Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in ACFR Exhibit J-14.
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TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOQL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF QVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020

EXHIBIT "j-12"

UNAUDITED
Estimated
Estimated Share of
Percentage Overlapping
Governmental Unit Debt Qutstanding Applicable * Debt
Debt repaid with properiy taxes
Township of Green Brook 3 875,000.00 10000% $ 875,000
Other debt
Somerset County 228,271,942.76 2.25% 5,131,509
Subtotal, overlapping debt 6,008,509
Township of Green Brook School District Direct Debt 10,155,000.00 100.00% 10,155,000

Total direct and overlapping debt

Source: Municipal Chief Financial Officer, County Treasurer's Office

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of the District.

516,161,609

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and
businesses of the district. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the
entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However this does not imply that

every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values, Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value that is within
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EXHIBIT "J-14"

TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
UNAUDITED
Year Ended Per Capita
December 31 Population income Unemployment Rate
2020 7,005 $ 109,916 7.60%
2019 7,042 109,916 2.90%
2018 7,092 105,161 3.30%
2017 7,108 99,189 3.40%
2016 7,135 92,514 4.10%
2015 7,143 88,447 4.50%
2014 7,178 83,429 5.30%
2013 7,200 78,451 6.80%
2012 7,208 75,156 6.50%
2011 7,201 71,429 6.60%

Source: N.J. Department of Labor
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EXHIBIT “J-20"

SHEET #1
TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible

Section | - Property:
Blanket Building and Contents $ 500,000,000.00 3% 2,500.00
Flood Zone AorV 25,000,000.00 250,000.00
Flood Zone - Ali Other 10,000,000.00 500,000.00
Earthquake 25,000,000.00 5%
Boiler & Machinery 100,000,000.00 10,000.00
Included in Property -

Valuable Papers and Records; Extra Expense/Business

income, EDP Equip, Data, Media, Extra Expense; Camera,

Musical Instruments; Glass Coverage; Demolition/incr. Cost

of Construction; Blanket Contractors Equipment
Section 11 - General Liability:
Bodily Injury and Properly Damage 5,000,000.00
Sexual Misconduct 5,000,000.00
Section 1] - School Board Legal Liability Policy:
Aggregate Limit of Liability 10,000,000.00 5,000.00
Section IV - Crime;
Blanket Employee Dishonesty 500,000.00 1,000.00
Depositors Forgery 50,000.00
Computer Fraud 50,000.00
Money and Securities 50,000.00
Section V - Environmental Liability:
Per Pollution Condition 1,000,000.00 10,000.00
Policy and Program Aggregate 25,000,000.00
Retroactive Date: 7/1/2011
Cyber Liability
Aggregate Limit of Liability 2,000,000.00 10,000.00
Workers Compensation

Section A Statutory

Section B 5,000,000.00
Automobiie:

Bodily Injury and Property 5,000,060.00

Personal Injury Protection Statutory

Uninsured/Underinsured 16,000/30,000/5,000

Medical Payments 10,000.00

Comprehensive and Collision ACV 1,000.00
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EXHIBIT "J-20"

SHEET #2
TOWNSHIP OF GREEN BROOK SCHOOCL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
UNAUDITED
Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
Commercial Umbrella; SAIF
Per Occurrence $ 5,000,000.00
Annual Aggregate 5,000,000.00

Umbrella Excess Liability Fireman's Fund-Starstone and Markel
Policy Aggregate Limit of Liability -

Primary 30,000,000.00
Student Accident:
Maximum Benefit 1,000,000.00

Catastrophic Student Accident:

Maximum Benefit 5,000,000.00
Fidelity Bonds;
Hanover Insurance Company -
Business Administrator/Board Secretary 225,000.00
Treasurer of Schooi Monies 225,000.00

Source: District Records
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EXHIBIT “K-1"

SUPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535

E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Green Brook School District
County of Somerset

Green Brook, New Jersey 08812

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Township of Green
Brook School District, in the County of Somerset, State of New Jersey (the "District") as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 27, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.



SuprPLEE, CLooNEY & COMPANY

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ok oy

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTY

Ak v AN

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 27, 2022
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EXHIBIT "K-2"

SUuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH
MAJOR STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Township of Green Brook School District
County of Somerset

Green Brook, New Jersey 08812

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Township of Green Brook School District’s, in the County of Somerset,
State of New Jersey (the “District”} compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the New Jersey OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the District’'s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. The District's major
state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with state statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its state awards applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District’'s major state
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and New Jersey OMB 15-08. Those standards
and New Jersey OMB 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District's
compliance.
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SvuprLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state
programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered District’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program fo
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a state program on a tfimely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the resuits of that testing based on the requirements
of the State of New Jersey OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

/QVWLMWJ-%

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOU

Audt L/ N

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 27, 2022
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

NOTE 4:

EXHIBIT "K-5"

Township of Green Brook School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance

Year Ended June 30, 2021

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance include federal and state activity of the Board of Education, Green
Brook School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board’s
basic financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from the
federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule
of expenditures of federal awards and state financials assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exceptions
of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the
accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1
of the District’s basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the reguirements of OMB Uniform Guidance, Audits
of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used
in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

DE MINIMUS INDIRECT COST RATE

The District has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund
on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the deferred state
aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44 2. For GAAP accounting purposes, those payments are not recognized
until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the
state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented
in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related
revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special
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NOTE 4:

EXHIBIT "K-5"

Township of Green Brook School District

Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance

Year Ended June 30, 2021

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

revenue fund also recognizes the deferred state aid payments in the current
budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44 .2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($8,938.00) for the general fund, ($3,250.00) for the special revenue fund, and
$24,379.70 for the capital projects fund. See Exhibit C-3 for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and
special revenue funds, and Exhibit F-2 for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis
to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the capital projects fund. Federal
awards and state financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General Fund $4,881,070.79 $4,881,070.79
Special Revenue Fund $293,239.51 293,239.51
Food Service Fund 90,667.71 3,327.26 93,004.97

Total Awards &
Financial Assistance $383,907.22 $4.884,398.05 $5,268,305.27

NOTE 5:

NOTE 6:

RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

OTHER

The amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the state
on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2021. TPAF Social Security
contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's
share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June
30, 2021.
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Township of Green Brook School District
Somerset County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

(n
(2)

3

Type of Auditor's Report Issued:
internal Control Over Financial Reporting:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified?

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted during the audit?

Federal Program(s) — Not Applicable
State Program(s)

N

(2)

3

(4)

(5)

(6)

Internai Control Over Major State Programs:
(a) Material weakness(es) identified?

(b} Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of Auditor’'s Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-08?

Identification of Major State Program(s):

Grant
Program Number
State Aid Cluster:
Categorical Special Education Aid 21-495-034-5120-089
Categorical Security Aid 21-495-034-5120-084

Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular 15-087
149
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Unmodified

No

No

No

No

No

Unmodified

No

Yes



EXHIBIT “K-8"

Township of Green Brook School District
Somerset County, New Jersey

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

Internal Control Findings — None Reported
Compliance Findings — None Reported

Section 1l - Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State Programs
Federal Programs — Not Applicable

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT "K-7”

Township of Green Brook School District
Somerset County, New Jersey

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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